
31 October 2017 

Mr Chris Enright 
Executive Director 
Registered Organisations Commission 
GPO Box 2983 
MELBOURNE VIC 3001 

By email: regorgs@roc.gov.au 

Dear Mr Enright 

CEPU EE&S Division- NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH 
Operating Reports as at 31 December 2010, 2011 & 2012 

-Reporting of Membership Numbers 

I refer to the above and enclose by way of lodging: 

• Declaration correcting the membership figures reported in the branch 
operating reports for the reporting periods ending 31 December 2010, 2011 
and 2012. 

As you are aware, the CEPU has instigated independent audits of the membership 
figures reported in the annual branch committee of management operating reports for 
the past 7 years. 

As a consequence of this audit, the Branch State Council Executive, in a meeting held 
30 October 2017, authorised the submission of a declaration to the Registered 
Organisations Commission (ROC) to correct the figures reported in the branch 
operating reports for the total branch members for the reporting periods ending 31 
December 2010, 2011 and 2012. 

These amended figures have now been published to our website for the information of 
members. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you wish to discuss this matter. 

Yours faithfully 

David McKinley 
Branch Secretary 

Electrical Trades Union of Australia 
New South Wales Branch 

Communications, Electrical. 
Electronic, Energy, Information, 
Postal, Plumbing and Allied 
Services Union of Australia 

Secretary 

Dave McKinley 

Sydney 

Level 5, 370 Pitt St 
Sydney NSW 2000 

Ph 02 9267 4844 
Fax 02 9267 4877 

Newcastle 

Suite 48, Ground Floor 
406-408 King St 
Newcastle West NSW 2302 

Ph 02 4968 2488 
Fax 02 4968 3466 

Canberra 

25-27 Darling St. 
Mitchell ACT 2911 

Ph 02 9267 4844 
Fax 02 6163 6667 



Communications, Electrical, Electronic, Energy, Information, Postal, Plumbing 

and Allied Services Union of Australia 

Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

DECLARATION -CORRECTING REPORT TO 

CEPU Electrical, Energy and Services Division- New South Wales Branch 

OPERATING REPORT 

lodged pursuant to s.268 

I, David McKinley, of 370 Pitt Street, Sydney, in the state of New South Wales 2000, declare: 

o I am the Branch Secretary of the Communications, Electrical, Electronic, Energy, 
Information, Postal, Plumbing and Allied Services Union of Australia, Electrical, Energy and 
Services Division - New South Wales Branch (the branch), a branch of an organisation 
registered under the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the Act). 

• Pursuant to s.268 of the Act, for the periods ended 31 December 2010, 31 December 2011 
and 31 December 2012, the full financial reports, including the operating reports, of the 
branch were lodged with the Fair Work Commission (FWC) in FR2010/2831, FR2011/2837 
and FR2012/529 respectively. 

• An independent audit into the membership figures reported in the branch committee of 
management operating reports for the reporting periods 31 December 2010,31 December 
2011 and 31 December 2012 found the following variances with the figures reported in 
the operating reports: 

As at 31 Dec 2010 2011 2012 

Reported 21,750 22,321 21,978 

Audited 21,664 22,305 21,985 

Variance 86 16 7 

o On 30 October 2017, in response to the findings of the audit, the State Council Executive 
authorised the Branch Secretary to amend the branch committee of management 
operating reports for the years ended 31 December 2010, 31 December 2011 and 31 
December 2012 to reflect the membership figures resulting from the audit. 

Signed: 

Name: 
Date: 

Mr David McKinley 

/6/t& /!7 



 

 Terrace Towers 

80 William Street 

East Sydney NSW 2011 

Telephone: (02) 8374 6666 

International: (612) 8374 6666 

Facsimile: (02) 9380 6990 

Email: sydney@fwc.gov.au 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
30 September 2013 
 
  
Mr Steve Butler 
Secretary, NSW Electrical Divisional Branch 
CEPU 
Level 5, 370 Pitt Street  

SYDNEY     NSW   2000 

 

Dear Mr Butler, 

Re: Lodgement of financial accounts and statements - CEPU, NSW Electrical Divisional 
Branch - for year ended 31 December 2012 (FR2012/529) 

 

I acknowledge receipt of your letter dated today in relation to the above. 

Yours sincerely 

 

  

 

Stephen Kellett 

Senior Adviser, Regulatory Compliance Branch 

 



J 

EJU ELECTRICAL TRADES UNION OF AUSTRALIA, NSW BRANCH 
www.etunsw.asn.au 

POWER IN UNITY SECRETARY: Steve Butler 

30 September 2013 

Ms. Stephen Kellett 
Senior Adviser - Regulatory Compliance Branch 
Fair Work Commission 
Terrace Towers, 80 William Street 
East Sydney NSW 2011 

By email: Stephen.Kellett@fwc.gov.au 

Dear Mr. Kellett, 

RE: Lodgement of financial accounts and statements - CEPU, NSW Electrical 
Divisional Branch - for year ended 31 December 2012 (FR2012/529) 

The Communications, Electrical, Electronic, Energy, Information, Postal, Plumbing and 
Allied Services Union of Australia (CEPU) acknowledges receipt of your Jetter received 
today 30 September 2013 relating to the above financial accounts and statements lodged with 
the Fair Work Commission (FWC) on 10 July 2013. 

The CEPU thanks the FWC for its assistance in this matter and notifies that all future reports 
will comply with our obligations under the new Reporting guidelines issued on 26 June 2013 
as well as with all relevant Accounting standards. 

If you require further information please do not hesitate to contact Donald Garton on (02) 
9267 4844. 

Steve Butler 
Secretary 

Cc: Richard Pinker - Pinker Arnold Chartered Accountants - Richard @pam.com.au 

Level 5 , 370 Pitt Street 
Sydney NSW 2000 
Phone: 02 9267 4844 
Fox: 02 9267 4877 

26 Worobrook Bvd 
Worobrook NSW 2304 
Phone: 02 4968 2488 
Fox: 02 4968 3466 

Level 2, 63 Market Street 
Wollongong NSW 2500 
Phone: 02 4229 8711 
Fox: 02 4228 5636 

25-27 Darling Street 
PO Box 126 
Mitchell ACT 291 1 
Phone: 6163 6666 
Fox: 6 163 6667 

ABN: 24 379 005 569 Email: etunsw@etunsw.asn.au 

COMMUNICATIONS 
ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 
UNION 
NSW ElECTRICAl 
DIVISIONAL BRANCH 



From: Ronald De La Cuadra
To: KELLETT, Stephen
Cc: richard@pam.com.au; Steve Butler; Donald Garton
Subject: FR2012/529 - Lodgement of financial accounts and statements - CEPU, NSW Electrical Divisional Branch -

for year ended 31 December 2012
Date: Monday, 30 September 2013 3:48:47 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png
FR2012-529 - Letter from Secretary Steve Butler.pdf

Dear Mr. Kellett,
 
Please find attached a letter from CEPU (NSW Electrical Division) Secretary Steve Butler in
relation to the above matter.
 
Regards,
 
Ronald De La Cuadra
Industrial & Research Officer
Electrical Trades Union of Australia (NSW Branch)
CEPU, Electrical Trades Union Division, NSW Branch
Level 5, 370 Pitt St, Sydney NSW 2000
02 9267 4844  |  ronaldd@etunsw.asn.au  |  www.etunsw.com.au
 

                                   
 

  
 

mailto:ronaldd@etunsw.asn.au
mailto:Stephen.KELLETT@fwc.gov.au
mailto:richard@pam.com.au
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mailto:donaldg@etunsw.asn.au
mailto:ronaldd@etunsw.asn.au
http://www.etunsw.com.au/
https://twitter.com/NSWPowerSellOff
http://www.facebook.com/pages/Stop-the-Sell-Off/383490491758035
http://vimeo.com/user17399695
http://stoptheselloff.org.au/
http://www.etunsw.com.au/ETUMembers/join-us



















 

 Terrace Towers 

80 William Street 

East Sydney NSW 2011 

Telephone: (02) 8374 6666 

International: (612) 8374 6666 

Facsimile: (02) 9380 6990 

Email: sydney@fwc.gov.au 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
30 September 2013 
 
  
Mr Steve Butler 
Secretary, NSW Electrical Divisional Branch 
CEPU 
Level 5, 370 Pitt Street  

SYDNEY     NSW   2000 

 

Dear Mr Butler, 

Re: Lodgement of financial accounts and statements - CEPU, NSW Electrical Divisional 
Branch - for year ended 31 December 2012 (FR2012/529) 

 

I refer to the above financial accounts and statements lodged with the Fair Work Commission on 

10 July 2013.    

As I indicated in email correspondence to Mr Donald Garton on 10 September 2013, the financial 

statements did not disclose separately several item balances specified by the former Reporting 

Guidelines.  I indicated that I thought a supplementary statement of disclosures appropriate and 

Mr Garton agreed to prepare a statement and communicated the Branch’s undertaking to include 

the separate disclosures in future reporting.   

I have spoken to Mr Garton today and indicated that, after careful consideration and on the basis 

of the undertaking by the Branch, I would not require any further action in respect of the report 

but would file the report as lodged. The documents have accordingly been filed.  FWC will expect 

however that future reports will comply with the new Reporting guidelines issued on 26 June 

2013 and with all relevant Accounting standards. 

I attach a copy of the new Reporting Guidelines, and a copy of the Model Financial Statements 

for your convenient reference.   I encourage the Branch to contact me on (02) 6723 7237 if it has 

any query regarding the legislative reporting requirements. 

Yours sincerely 

 

  

 

Stephen Kellett 

Senior Adviser, Regulatory Compliance Branch 

 

cc. Mr Donald Garton, Financial Controller 



From: KELLETT, Stephen
To: "donaldg@etunsw.asn.au"
Subject: Attention Mr Steve Butler - financial report for y/e 31 December 2012 - filing
Date: Monday, 30 September 2013 2:53:00 PM
Attachments: CEPU ELE NSW FR2012 529 (final) 30092013.pdf

fr_guidelines_253 2013.pdf
Model-financial-statements.pdf

Dear Donald,
 
Please see attached my letter to Mr Butler in relation to the above, and some attachments.
 
Yours sincerely
 
STEPHEN KELLETT
Regulatory Compliance Branch
FAIR WORK COMMISSION
 
80 William Street
EAST SYDNEY   NSW   2011
 
(ph) (02) 6723 7237
(email) stephen.kellett@fwc.gov.au
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Facsimile: (02) 9380 6990 


Email: sydney@fwc.gov.au 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
30 September 2013 
 
  
Mr Steve Butler 
Secretary, NSW Electrical Divisional Branch 
CEPU 
Level 5, 370 Pitt Street  


SYDNEY     NSW   2000 


 


Dear Mr Butler, 


Re: Lodgement of financial accounts and statements - CEPU, NSW Electrical Divisional 
Branch - for year ended 31 December 2012 (FR2012/529) 


 


I refer to the above financial accounts and statements lodged with the Fair Work Commission on 


10 July 2013.    


As I indicated in email correspondence to Mr Donald Garton on 10 September 2013, the financial 


statements did not disclose separately several item balances specified by the former Reporting 


Guidelines.  I indicated that I thought a supplementary statement of disclosures appropriate and 


Mr Garton agreed to prepare a statement and communicated the Branch’s undertaking to include 


the separate disclosures in future reporting.   


I have spoken to Mr Garton today and indicated that, after careful consideration and on the basis 


of the undertaking by the Branch, I would not require any further action in respect of the report 


but would file the report as lodged. The documents have accordingly been filed.  FWC will expect 


however that future reports will comply with the new Reporting guidelines issued on 26 June 


2013 and with all relevant Accounting standards. 


I attach a copy of the new Reporting Guidelines, and a copy of the Model Financial Statements 


for your convenient reference.   I encourage the Branch to contact me on (02) 6723 7237 if it has 


any query regarding the legislative reporting requirements. 


Yours sincerely 


 


  


 


Stephen Kellett 


Senior Adviser, Regulatory Compliance Branch 


 


cc. Mr Donald Garton, Financial Controller 








 


 


Reporting guidelines for the purposes of section 253 
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Publication history:  Relevant legislation 


or materials 
Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009 


Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) 
Regulations 2009 


First edition: 20 June 2003 


Second edition: 12 October 2004 


Third edition: 26 June 2013 


Application  
1. These reporting guidelines are made under section 255 of the Fair Work (Registered 


Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act).  


2. These reporting guidelines apply to all general purpose financial reports (GPFR), 
including a concise financial report, of a reporting unit as defined in section 242 of the RO 
Act except where the General Manager has issued a certificate under subsection 270(1) 
to the reporting unit for that financial year. Separate reporting guidelines made under 
section 255 of the RO Act for purposes of section 270 apply to a GPFR of a reporting unit 
in relation to the financial year for which a certificate has been issued under 
subsection 270(1).  


3. In the event of a conflict between a requirement of these reporting guidelines and a 
requirement of an Australian Accounting Standard, the requirement of the Standard 
prevails unless there has been a determination under section 241 of the RO Act that the 
Standard or the relevant part of the Standard does not apply in relation to an organisation 
or a class of organisations.  


Operative date  
4. These reporting guidelines apply to each financial year of a reporting unit that ends on or 


after 30 June 2013.  


Purpose of reporting guidelines  
5. These reporting guidelines apply for the purposes of section 253 of the RO Act.  


6. Under subsection 253(1) of the RO Act a reporting unit is required to have a GPFR 
prepared. The GPFR must be prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting 
Standards. These reporting guidelines prescribe disclosure requirements in addition to 
those prescribed by Australian Accounting Standards having in mind the nature of 
organisations registered under the RO Act.  


7. The disclosure requirements prescribed by these reporting guidelines are directed 
towards providing members of a reporting unit with information to enable them to gauge 
the performance of the committee of management and other holders of office in relation 
to the financial management of the reporting unit. In addition, the reporting guidelines 
seek to improve the quality of information available to users of the GPFR about the 
reporting unit’s economic support of, or economic dependency on, other reporting units of 
the organisation and other entities.  



http://www.fwc.gov.au/
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General requirements for presentation and disclosures in GPFR  
8. It is a requirement that all reporting units apply the Tier 1 reporting requirements as per 


the Australian Accounting Standard AASB1053 Application for Tiers of Australian 
Accounting Standards. 


9. The reporting unit must disclose in the notes to the financial statements the notice 
required by subsection 272(5) of the RO Act drawing attention to subsections (1), (2) and 
(3) of section 272 and setting out those subsections. 


10. Where a reporting unit’s ability to continue as a going concern is reliant on the agreed 
financial support of another reporting unit(s) this must be disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statement. The reporting unit must disclose: 


a) the name of the reporting unit(s) from which the agreed financial support may be 
derived; and 


b) the terms and conditions attached to this agreed financial support. 


11. Where a reporting unit has agreed to provide financial support to ensure another 
reporting unit(s) has the ability to continue as a going concern this must be disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statement. The reporting unit must disclose: 


a) the name of the reporting unit(s) to which the agreed financial support is directed; 


b) the terms and conditions attached to this agreed financial support. 


12. Where a reporting unit acquires an asset or a liability during the financial year as a result 
of:  


a) an amalgamation under Part 2 of Chapter 3, of the RO Act in which the 
organisation (of which the reporting unit form part) was the amalgamated 
organisation; or  


b) a restructure of the branches of the organisation; or  


c) a determination by the General Manager under subsection 245(1) of the RO Act of 
an alternative reporting structure for the organisation; or  


d) a revocation by the General Manager under subsection 249(1) of the RO Act of a 
certificate issued to an organisation under subsection 245(1),  


the reporting unit must disclose in the notes to the financial statements in respect of each 
such asset or class of assets or each such liability or class of liabilities:  


e) date acquired;  


f) description; and  


g) name of the entity (including a reporting unit of the organisation or that of another 
organisation) from which it was acquired.  


13. Where a reporting unit acquires assets and liabilities during the financial year as part of a 
business combination then the relevant Australian Accounting Standard must be 
complied with. 
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14. If any of the activities identified in paragraphs 10, 11, 12 and 13 have not occurred in the 
reporting period, a statement to this effect must be included in the notes to the GPFR. 


Statement of comprehensive income  
Revenue 


15. Balances for the following items of revenue must be disclosed by the reporting unit in the 
notes to the financial statements, unless already disclosed on the face of the statement of 
comprehensive income in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards: 


a) entrance fees or periodic subscriptions (in these guidelines referred to as 
membership subscriptions) in respect of membership of the organisation;  


b) where, under the rules of the organisation or a branch of the organisation, a 
reporting unit may receive from another reporting unit of the organisation a 
capitation fee: 


i. the amount from each reporting unit; and  


ii. the name of each such reporting unit;  


c) where compulsory levies are raised from the members or as appeals for voluntary 
contributions (including whip arounds) for the furtherance of a particular purpose: 


i. the amount; and  


ii. a brief description of the purpose of each such levy or appeal;  


d) donations or grants (other than voluntary contributions referred to in 
subparagraph c)); and  


e) where the reporting unit is in receipt of any other financial support from another 
reporting unit of the organisation:  


i. the name of the reporting unit(s) from which the financial support is derived; and  


ii. the amount of financial support derived from the other reporting unit(s).  


16. If any of the activities identified in paragraph 15 have not occurred in the reporting period, 
a statement to this effect must be included in the notes to the GPFR. 


Expense 


17. Balances for the following items of expense must be disclosed by the reporting unit in the 
notes to the financial statements, unless already disclosed on the face of the statement of 
comprehensive income in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards: 


a) expenses incurred as consideration for employers making payroll deductions of 
membership subscriptions;  


b) where, under the rules of the organisation or a branch of the organisation, the 
reporting unit must pay to another reporting unit of the organisation a capitation 
fee: 


i. the amount paid to each entity; and  


ii. the name of each entity to which monies were paid;  
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c) where fees and periodic subscriptions are paid in respect of its affiliation to any 
political party, any federation, congress, council or group of organisations, or any 
international body having an interest in industrial matters: 


i. the amount paid to each entity; and  


ii. the name of each entity to which monies were paid;  


d) where compulsory levies have been imposed on the reporting unit, for each such 
levy: 


i. the amount;  


ii. a brief description of purpose; and 


iii. the name of the entity imposing the levy (including another reporting unit of the 
organisation);  


e) where grants or donations have been paid: 


i. the total amount paid in grants; and 


ii. the total amount paid in donations; and 


iii. except where already disclosed in a statement that has been lodged under section 
237 of the RO Act, for any individual grant or donation that exceeds $1,0001: 


(1) the amount paid;  


(2) the purpose for which the grant or donation was made; and 


(3) except where the grant or donation was made to relieve a member of the 
reporting unit from severe financial hardship, the name of the recipient of the 
grant or donation; 


f) employee expenses related to holders of office of the reporting unit by: 


i. wages and salaries; 


ii. superannuation; 


iii. leave and other entitlements; 


iv. separation and redundancies; and 


v. other employee expenses (specify if material);  


g) employee expenses related to employees (other than holders of offices) of the 
reporting unit by:  


i. wages and salaries; 


ii. superannuation; 


                                                      


1 The primary obligation is in section 237 of the RO Act. Civil penalty provisions apply. 
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iii. leave and other entitlements; 


iv. separation and redundancies; and 


v. other employee expenses (specify if material); 


h) fees and/or allowances (other than any amount included in an amount referred to 
in subparagraphs (f) or (g) of this paragraph) paid to persons in respect of their 
attendances as representatives of the reporting unit at conferences or other 
meetings;  


i) expenses (other than expenses included in an amount referred to elsewhere in this 
paragraph) incurred in connection with holding meetings of members of the 
reporting unit and any conferences or meetings of councils, committees, panels or 
other bodies for the holding of which the reporting unit was wholly or partly 
responsible;  


j) legal costs and other expenses related to: 


i. litigation; and  


ii. other legal matters;  


k) penalties imposed on the organisation under the RO Act with respect to conduct of 
the reporting unit.   


18. If any of the activities identified in paragraph 17 have not occurred in the reporting period, 
a statement to this effect must be included in the notes to the GPFR. 


Statement of financial position  
19. Where an item is disclosed on the face of the statement of financial position as:  


a) a receivable or other right to receive cash; or  


b) a payable or other financial liability; and  


c) the item or a part of the item has been derived as a result of one or more 
transactions and/or other past events with another reporting unit of the 
organisation,  


the following additional disclosures must be made in the notes to the financial statements 
about the item or part of the item:  


d) the name of the other reporting unit; and  


e) the amount attributable to the other reporting unit.  


20. If any of the activities identified in paragraph 19 have not occurred in the reporting period, 
a statement to this effect must be included in the notes to the GPFR. 


Liabilities 


21. Total amounts for the following items must be disclosed by the reporting unit in the notes 
to the financial statements, unless already disclosed on the face of the statement of 
financial position in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards:  
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a) payables to employers as consideration for the employers making payroll 
deductions of membership subscriptions;  


b) payables in respect of legal costs and other expenses related to litigation or other 
legal matters;  


c) employee provisions in respect of holders of offices in the reporting unit by: 


i. annual leave; 


ii. long service leave; 


iii. separation and redundancies;  


iv. other employee provisions; and 


d) employee provisions in respect of employees (other than holders of offices) of the 
reporting unit by: 


i. annual leave; 


ii. long service leave; 


iii. separation and redundancies; and 


iv. other employee provisions. 


22. If any of the activities identified in paragraph 21 have not occurred for the reporting 
period, a statement to this effect must be included in the notes to the GPFR. 


Statement of changes in equity  
23. Total amounts for the following items must be disclosed by the reporting unit in the notes 


to the financial statements, unless already disclosed on the face of the statement of 
financial position or statement of changes in equity in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards:  


a) name and balance of each fund or account operated in respect of compulsory 
levies raised by the reporting unit or voluntary contributions collected from 
members of the reporting unit;  


b) where monies, or the balance of monies referred to in subparagraph (a) have been 
invested in any assets: 


i. the name of the fund or account; and  


ii. the value of those assets;  


c) name and balance of each fund or account operated (other than the general fund 
or a fund referred to in (a)), the operation of which is required by the rules of the 
organisation including the rules of a branch of the organisation;  


d) where there has been transfer(s) and/or withdrawal(s) to a fund, account or 
controlled entity, when any of these are kept for a specific purpose(s) by the 
reporting unit:  


i. the amount transferred to, or withdrawn;  
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ii. the name of the fund, account or controlled entity; and 


iii. the specific purpose of the fund, account or controlled entity; and  


e) the balance of the general fund.  


24. If any of the activities identified in paragraph 23 have not occurred in the reporting period, 
a statement to this effect must be included in the notes to the GPFR. 


Statement of cash flows  
25. Where another reporting unit and/or controlled entity of the organisation is the source of a 


cash inflow or the application of a cash outflow, such cash flow should be separately 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements and show the name of the other 
reporting unit and/or controlled entity concerned.  


26. If any of the activities identified in paragraph 25 have not occurred in the reporting period, 
a statement to this effect must be included in the notes to the GPFR. 


Recovery of wages activity financial report  
27. Where the reporting unit has undertaken recovery of wages activity and has derived 


revenues for the financial year in respect of such activity, the financial information 
associated with this activity must be disclosed as an additional financial report as 
required by section 253(2)(c) of the RO Act.  


28. The financial report required under paragraph 27 must be prepared and presented in a 
manner consistent with Australian Accounting Standards.  


29. Comparatives for the preceding financial year must be disclosed in the financial report 
required under paragraph 27.  


30. The financial report required under paragraph 27 must be prepared under the accrual 
basis of accounting. 


31. Balances for the following items must be disclosed in the financial report required under 
paragraph 27:  


Revenue 


a) amounts in aggregate recovered from employers in respect of recovery of wages 
activity; and  


b) interest received on recovered monies 


Expenditure 


c) deductions of amounts payable in aggregate in respect of membership of the 
organisation where at the time of deduction the amounts had become payable:  


i. 12 months or less; or  


ii. greater than 12 months; and  


d) deductions of donations or other contributions made to a fund or account: 


i. of the reporting unit, showing the name and amount in aggregate in respect of each 
such fund or account; and  
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ii. of another reporting unit of the organisation, showing the name of the other reporting 
unit and the name and amount in aggregate in respect of each such fund or account; 
and  


iii. of another entity, showing the name of the other entity and the name and amount in 
aggregate in respect of each such fund or account; and  


e) deductions in aggregate of fees charged or reimbursements in aggregate of 
expenses incurred by the reporting unit in respect of recovery of wages activity; 
and  


f) amounts in aggregate distributed to workers as recovered monies 


Cash assets  


g) cash assets attributable to recovered monies as at the beginning of the financial 
year; and  


h) cash assets attributable to recovered monies as at the end of the financial year.  


32. For purposes of subparagraph 253(2)(b)(ii) of the RO Act, the notes to the financial 
statements must contain the following information in relation to recovery of wages, unless 
already disclosed in the financial report required under paragraph 27:  


a) the number of workers to which the monies recovered mentioned in subparagraph 
31(a) relate; and  


b) aggregate payables to workers attributable to recovered monies but not yet 
distributed; and  


c) the number of workers to which the payables mentioned in subparagraph (b) 
relate; and  


d) name and balance of each fund or account operated for recovery of wages activity; 
and  


e) where monies, or the balance of monies referred to in subparagraph (d) have been 
invested in any assets: 


i. the name of the fund or account; and  


ii. the value of those assets.  


33. If no recovery of wages activities has occurred in the reporting period, a statement to this 
effect must be included in the notes to the GPFR. 


Additional reporting requirements 
34. Where a reporting unit’s financial affairs are administered by another entity (the other 


entity), the reporting unit must disclose in a separate note in the GPFR a detailed 
breakdown of all services provided and/or expenses incurred. This will also include: 


a) the name of the other entity; 


b) the terms and conditions of the arrangement;  
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c) a narrative description as to the nature of the expenses and/or consultancy 
services provided. 


Where applicable, such disclosure shall be in accordance with the disclosure 
requirements of the Australian Accounting Standards, the RO Act and these reporting 
guidelines. 


35. Any payments made during the reporting period to a former related party of the reporting 
unit, where the liability was incurred during the period in which a related party relationship 
existed, must be disclosed under the related party transaction note in the GPFR as 
though the related party relationship existed at the date of payment.2 


Operating report 
36. A reporting unit must disclose in its operating report:  


a) the name of each officer and/or employee of the reporting unit who is either: 


i. a trustee of a superannuation scheme or an exempt public sector superannuation 
scheme; or 


ii. a director of a company that is a trustee of a superannuation entity or an exempt 
public sector superannuation scheme; and 


b) whether, with respect to each such officer and/or employee, the officer or 
employee holds the positions set out in paragraph a) because a criterion for being 
a trustee or director is that the officer or employee is an officer or employee of an 
organisation.  


37. Unless already disclosed under paragraph 36, a reporting unit must disclose in its 
operating report the name of each officer and/or employee of the reporting unit who is a 
director of a company or a member of a board and, with respect to each such officer 
and/or employee: 


a) the name of the company or board;  


b) the principal activities of the company or board; and 


c) whether the officer or employee holds the position because they are an officer or 
employee of the reporting unit or were nominated for the position by the reporting 
unit or by a peak council. 


38. If the reporting unit has no information to disclose in its operating report under 
paragraphs 36 and 37 above, a statement to that effect must be included in the operating 
report.  


39. The operating report must: 


a) identify the officer(s) who prepared the report; 


b) be signed by the officer(s) who prepared the report; and 


                                                      


2 For example, payments of employment entitlements to former officers of the reporting unit 
would fall within this category. 
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c) be dated by each officer who has signed the report as at the date on which the 
officer signs the report. 


Committee of management statement  
40. For the purposes of paragraph 253(2)(c) of the RO Act, the reporting unit must prepare a 


committee of management statement containing declarations by the committee of 
management in relation to the GPFR.  


41. The committee of management statement must include declarations by the committee of 
management as to whether in their opinion:  


a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting 
Standards;  


b) the financial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelines of the 
General Manager;  


c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial 
performance, financial position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial 
year to which they relate;  


d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay 
its debts as and when they become due and payable; 


e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year:  


i. meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of 
the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and  


ii. the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the 
rules of the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and  


iii. the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in 
accordance with the RO Act; and  


iv. where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the financial records 
of the reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a manner consistent 
with each of the other reporting units of the organisation; and  


v. where information has been sought in any request by a member of the reporting unit 
or General Manager duly made under section 272 of the RO Act, that information 
has been provided to the member or General Manager; and  


vi. where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Fair Work 
Commission under section 273 of the RO Act, there has been compliance  


f) where the reporting unit has undertaken recovery of wages activity:  


i. the financial report on recovery of wages activity has been fairly and accurately 
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the reporting guidelines of the 
General Manager; and  


ii. the committee of management instructed the auditor to include in the scope of the 
audit required under subsection 257(1) of the RO Act all recovery of wages activity 
by the reporting unit from which revenues had been derived for the financial year in 
respect of such activity; and  
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iii. no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages activity or 
donations or other contributions were deducted from monies recovered from 
employers on behalf of workers other than as reported in the financial report on 
recovery of wages activity and the notes to the financial statements; and  


iv. that prior to engaging in any recovery of wages activity, the organisation has 
disclosed to members by way of a written policy all fees to be charged or 
reimbursement of expenses required for recovery of wages activity, and any likely 
request for donations or other contributions in acting for a worker in recovery of 
wages activity; and  


v. no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages activity or 
donations or other contributions were deducted from monies recovered from 
employers on behalf of workers until distributions of recovered money were made to 
the workers.  


42. The committee of management statement must:  


a) be made in accordance with such resolution as is passed by the committee of 
management of the reporting unit in relation to the matters requiring declaration;  


b) specify the date of passage of the resolution;  


c) be signed by a designated officer within the meaning of section 243 of the RO Act; 
and  


d) be dated as at the date the designated officer signs the statement.  


Auditor’s statement  
43. The auditor’s statement required under section 257(5) of the RO Act must include a 


declaration as to whether in the auditor’s opinion the GPFR is presented fairly in 
accordance with any of the following that apply in relation to the reporting unit:  


a) the Australian Accounting Standards;  


b) in relation to recovery of wages activity;  


i. that the scope of the audit encompassed recovery of wages activity;  


ii. that the financial statements and notes and recovery of wages activity financial 
report properly and fairly report all information required by the reporting guidelines of 
the General Manager, including:  


(1) any fees charged to, or reimbursements of expenses claimed from, members 
and others for recovery of wages activity; and  


(2) any donations or other contributions deducted from recovered money; and 


c) any other requirements imposed by these Reporting Guidelines or Part 3 of 
Chapter 8 of the RO Act.  


44. The auditor’s statement: 


a) must include a declaration that either: 


i. the auditor is an approved auditor; or 
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ii. the auditor is a member of a firm where at least one member is an approved auditor; 
and 


b) must specify that the auditor: 


i. is a person who is a member of CPA Australia, The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants in Australia or the Institute of Public Accountants (formerly the National 
Institute of Accountants); and 


ii. holds a current Public Practice Certificate. 


45. The auditor’s statement must include a declaration, that as part of the audit of the 
financial statement, they have concluded that management’s use of the going concern 
basis of accounting in the preparation of the reporting unit’s financial statements is 
appropriate. 


Lodgment with Fair Work Commission 
46. The certificate that must be prepared by the prescribed designated officer under 


section 268(c) of the RO Act must: 


a) state that the documents that are lodged with the certificate are copies of the full 
report and, where applicable, the concise report referred to in section 268 of the 
RO Act; 


b) state the date the full report or, where applicable, the concise report was provided 
to members; and 


c) state that the full report was presented to a meeting in accordance with section 266 
of the RO Act; and  


d) specify: 


i. the date of that meeting; and 


ii. whether the meeting was (a) a meeting held under section 266(1) or 266(2) or (b) a 
meeting held under section 266(3). 


47. A reporting unit must lodge with the Fair Work Commission within a period of six months 
and 14 days from the end of the financial year of the reporting unit: 


a) the certificate that must be prepared under section 268(c) of the RO Act;  


b) a copy of the full report; and 


c) if a concise report was provided to members, a copy of the concise report. 
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Glossary of terms  
48. The following terms are used in these reporting guidelines—the meaning of any term 


defined in the Australian Accounting Standards is not modified by the following glossary:  


amalgamated organisation has the meaning provided in section 35 of the RO Act.  


approved auditor has the meaning set out in regulation 4 of the RO Regulations. 


assets are resources controlled by a reporting unit as a result of past events and from 
which future economic benefits are expected to flow to the entity.  


Australian Accounting Standards means the accounting standards issued by the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) or issued by CPA Australia and by The 
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and adopted by the AASB (section 6 of the 
RO Act).  


business combination means a transaction or other event in which an acquirer obtains 
control of one or more businesses.  


capitation fees mean that under the rules of the organisation or a branch of the 
organisation a reporting unit may receive from another reporting unit of the organisation a 
proportion of the total amount received as membership subscriptions. 


cash means cash on hand and demand deposits.  


cash equivalent means short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
value.  


cash flows means inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents.  


comparatives mean the corresponding amounts and other disclosures for the preceding 
financial year presented for comparative purposes as part of the current year's financial 
report.  


control means the capacity of an entity to dominate decision-making, directly or 
indirectly, in relation to the financial and operating policies of another entity so as to 
enable that other entity to operate with it in achieving the objectives of the controlling 
entity. 


control (of an entity) means the power to govern the financial and operating policies of 
an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 


declared person or body has the meaning set out in subsection 148C(5) of the RO Act. 


designated officer is an officer of the reporting unit within the meaning of section 243 of 
the RO Act.  


employee benefits mean all forms of consideration given by the reporting unit in 
exchange for services rendered by holders of office or employees or for the termination of 
employment.  


entity means any legal, administrative, or fiduciary arrangement, organisational structure 
(including a reporting unit of an organisation) or other party (including a person) having 
the capacity to deploy scarce resources in order to achieve objectives.  
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equity means the residual interest in the assets of the reporting unit after deducting all its 
liabilities.  


financial duties mean duties that relate to the financial management of the reporting 
unit. 


financial records to the extent that they relate to finances or financial administration 
includes: 


a) a register; 


b) any other record of information; 


c) financial reports or financial records, however compiled, recorded or stored; 


d) a document (section 6 of the RO Act).  


financial statements comprise a statement of financial position, a statement of 
comprehensive income, a statement of changes in equity, a statement of cash flows and 
any other statement required by the Australian Accounting Standards 
(paragraph 253(2)(a) of RO Act).  


financial support means financial resources provided to ensure that the provision of the 
principal activities are possible. 


financial year in relation to an organisation means the period of 12 months commencing 
on 1 July in any year, or another period of 12 months as is provided in the rules of the 
organisation (section 6 of RO Act), or a different period in the special circumstances set 
out in section 240 of the RO Act.  


general administrative expenses includes expenses in respect of the office of the 
reporting unit, and other expenses that arise at the reporting unit level and relate to the 
reporting unit as a whole.  


general fund means the equity of the reporting unit other than in relation to any fund 
operated by the reporting unit for a specific purpose.  


general purpose financial report has the meaning set out in subsection 253(2) of the 
RO Act.  


grant or donation is taken to have the same meaning as used in section 149 or 
section 237 of the RO Act, though it is not limited by amount.  


liabilities are a present obligation of the reporting unit arising from past events, the 
settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the reporting unit of resources 
embodying economic benefits.  


membership subscriptions mean periodic subscriptions in respect of membership of 
the organisation.  


notes to the financial statements comprise notes required by Australian Accounting 
Standards and information required by the reporting guidelines (paragraph 253(2)(b) of 
the RO Act).  


organisation means an organisation registered under the RO Act.  
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other entity includes another reporting unit, a state association, a transitionally 
recognised association, external entity or other controlled entity of the reporting unit. 


payables are amounts owed by the reporting unit to other entities for goods or services 
delivered.  


prescribed designated officer for the purposes of paragraph 268(c) of the RO Act 
means: 


a) the secretary; or 


b) an officer of the organisation (or reporting unit) other than the secretary who is 
authorised by the organisation or by the rules of the organisation to sign the 
certificate.  


RO Act means the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009.  


RO Regulations means the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Regulations 2009 


receivables are amounts owed to the reporting unit by other entities (including members 
of the reporting unit) for goods or services delivered (including membership 
subscriptions).  


recovery of wages activity means work by the organisation to recover from employers 
money due and payable to workers under awards, industrial instruments as prescribed in 
the Australian Fair Work Act 2009 and contracts of employment.  


related party has the meaning set out in section 9B of the RO Act. 


relevant remuneration has the meaning set out in subsection 148A(9) of the RO Act. 


reporting unit has the meaning set out in section 242 of the RO Act.  


revenue are inflows or other enhancements, or savings in outflows of future economic 
benefits in the form of increase in assets or reductions in liabilities of the reporting unit 
that result in an increase in equity during the financial year.  


rules of an organisation are the rules that an organisation must have under Chapter 5, 
Part 2 of the RO Act.  


whip around means the collection of monies, whether on one or more occasions and 
whether voluntary or compulsory, by an officer or member of the reporting unit for the 
purpose of providing financial support to member(s) of the reporting unit and/or assisting 
the reporting unit to carry out the registered organisation’s objects as set out in its rules.  


workers means, in the context of recovery of wages activity, an employee who may or 
may not be a member of the organisation engaging in the recovery of wages activity.  


 


 


Bernadette O’Neill 
General Manager 
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Introduction 
 
This document contains a model consolidated financial report of a fictitious reporting unit as 
defined under section 242 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act), with 
a reporting date of 30 June 2013. 
 
The enclosed financial report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Australian Accounting Standards and the RO Act including the section 253 Reporting 
Guidelines issued 26 June 2013. The report is intended to illustrate the disclosure requirements 
of the Accounting Standards and the RO Act as required for the preparation of a general 
purpose financial report under Tier 1—Australian Accounting Standards. 
 
This financial report is illustrative only and does not attempt to show all possible accounting and 
disclosure requirements. It is essential to refer to the relevant authoritative source and, where 
necessary, seek appropriate professional advice. 
 
Although the illustrative financial report attempts to show the most common disclosure 
requirements for reporting units, it should not be regarded as a comprehensive checklist. A 
reporting unit will need to ensure that only the disclosures that are applicable to their individual 
circumstances are included in the audited financial report distributed to members and lodged 
with Fair Work Commission. 
 
Australian Accounting Standards 
 
When complying with Australian Accounting Standards, preparers also need to comply with all 
applicable amending standards and interpretations. 
 
Australian Accounting Standards applicable as at 30 June 2013 
 
This financial report illustrates Australian Accounting Standards which apply to annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. 
 
It is important to note that the illustrative financial report in this document will require continual 
updating as new and amended Standards and Interpretations are issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board. Therefore, if you are using this publication to assist in the 
preparation of your financial report, it must be emphasised that this does not include changes 
arising from new and amending Standards and Interpretations effective for periods commencing 
after 1 January 2013. 
 
Therefore, users of this publication are cautioned to ensure that they consider any changes in 
the requirements of Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued after 1 January 2013. 
 
In addition, the disclosure requirements of the following Australian Accounting Standards are 
not applicable to the fictitious reporting unit and have therefore not been dealt with in the model 
financial report: 
 
AASB 1 First Time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting 
Standards 
AASB 4 Insurance Contracts 
AASB 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 
AASB 111 Construction Contracts 
AASB 129 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies 
AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting 
AASB 141 Agriculture 
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AASB 1023 General Insurance Contracts 
AASB 1038 Life Insurance Contracts 
AASB 1039 Concise Financial Reports 
AASB 1049 Whole of Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting 
AASB 1050 Administered Items 
AASB 1051 Land Under Roads 
AASB 1052 Disaggregated Disclosures 
AAS 25 Financial Reporting by Superannuation Plans 
Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangements 
Interpretation 13 Customer Loyalty Programs 
Interpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate 
Interpretation 17 Distributions of Non-Cash Assets to Owners 
Interpretation 107 Introduction of the Euro 
Interpretation 110 Government Assistance — No Specific Relation to Operating Activities 
Interpretation 129 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures 
Interpretation 131 Revenue — Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services 
Interpretation 132 Intangible Assets — Web Site Costs 
Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities 
Interpretation 1042 Subscriber Acquisition Costs in the Telecommunications Industry 
Interpretation 1047 Professional Indemnity Claims Liabilities in Medical Defence Organisations 
Interpretation 1055 Accounting for Road Earthworks 
 
Allowed alternative treatments 
 
In some cases, an Australian Accounting Standard permits more than one accounting treatment 
for a transaction or event. Preparers of financial statements should select the treatment that is 
most relevant to their business and the relevant circumstances as their accounting policy. 
 
AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, requires an entity 
to select and apply its accounting policies consistently for similar transactions, events and/or 
conditions, unless an Australian Accounting Standard specifically requires or permits 
categorisation of items for which different policies may be appropriate. Where an Australian 
Accounting Standard requires or permits such categorisation, an appropriate accounting policy 
is selected and applied consistently to each category. Therefore, once a choice of one of the 
alternative treatments has been made, it becomes an accounting policy and must be applied 
consistently. Changes in accounting policy should only be made if required by a standard or 
interpretation, or if the change results in the financial statements providing more reliable and 
relevant information. 
 
Abbreviations 
 
The following abbreviations are used in the model financial report: 
 
AASB Australian Accounting Standards Board 
FBT Fringe Benefit Tax 
GPFR General Purpose Financial Report 
GST Goods and Services Tax 
RO Act Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009  
RO Regulations Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Regulations 2009 
 


  



http://www.fwc.gov.au/





Published 5 July 2013 www.fwc.gov.au  4/53 


INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT 
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[Insert name of Reporting Unit]  


s.268 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 


SAMPLE CERTIFICATE BY PRESCRIBED DESIGNATED OFFICER1 


Certificate for the period ended [insert date] 2013 


 


I [name] being the [title of office] of the [name of the reporting unit] certify:  


• that the documents lodged herewith are copies of the full report [and the concise 
report]2 for the [name of the reporting unit] for the period ended [insert date] referred to 
in s.268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009; and  
 


• that the [full report OR concise report]3 was provided to members of the reporting unit 
on [insert date]; and 
 


• that the full report was presented to [a general meeting of members OR a meeting of 
the committee of management]4 of the reporting unit on [insert date] in accordance with 
s.266 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 
 


Signature of prescribed designated officer: 
.............................................................................................  


 


Name of prescribed designated officer: 
............................................................................................. 


 


Title of prescribed designated officer: ..................................................................................... 


 


Dated: .......................................................................................................................................  


  


                                                
1  Regulation 162 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Regulations 2009 defines a ‘prescribed designated officer’ of a 


reporting unit for the purposes of s.268(c) as: 
 (a)  the secretary; or 
 (b)  an officer of the organisation other than the secretary who is authorised by the organisation or by the rules of the 


organisation to sign the certificate mentioned in that paragraph. 
2  Only applicable where a concise report is provided to members. 
3  Adjust certificate as appropriate to reflect the facts. 
4  Adjust certificate as appropriate to reflect the facts. 
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 [Insert name of Reporting Unit]  


SAMPLE OPERATING REPORT  


for the period ended [xxxx] 2013 


 


The committee presents its report on the reporting unit for the financial year ended [xxxx] 
2013. 


Review of principal activities, the results of those activities and any significant 
changes in the nature of those activities during the year 


[Insert relevant information—refer s.254(2)(a)] 


Significant changes in financial affairs 


[Insert relevant information—refer s.254(2)(b)] 


 Right of members to resign 


[Insert relevant information—refer s.254(2)(c)] 


Officers & employees who are superannuation fund trustee(s) (include position 
details) or director of a company that is a superannuation fund trustee 


[Insert relevant information—refer s.254(2)(d)] 


Number of members 


[Insert relevant information—refer regulation 159(a) and s.254(2)(f)] 


Number of employees 


[Insert relevant information—refer regulation 159(b) and s.254(2)(f)] 


Names of Committee of Management members and period positions held during the 
financial year 


[Insert relevant information—refer regulation 159(c] 


Officers & employees who are directors of a company or a member of a board  


[Insert relevant information—refer reporting guideline 37] 


 


 


Signature of designated officer: ...............................................................................................  


 


Name and title of designated officer: ....................................................................................... 


 


Dated: .......................................................................................................................................  
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[Insert name of Reporting Unit]  


SAMPLE COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT  


for the period ended [xxxx] 2013 


 


On the / / 2013 the [insert relevant committee name] of the [insert relevant reporting unit] 
passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial report (GPRF) for the 
year ended [xxxx] 2013:  


The [insert relevant committee name] declares that in its opinion:  


(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards;  


(b) the financial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelines of the 
General Manager;  


(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial 
performance, financial position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial 
year to which they relate;  


(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they become due and payable; and  


(e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year:  


(i) meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the 
rules of the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and  


(ii) the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance 
with the rules of the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; 
and  


(iii) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in 
accordance with the RO Act; and  


(iv) where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the financial 
records of the reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a 
consistent manner with each of the other reporting units of the organisation; 
and  


(v) where information has been sought in any request by a member of the 
reporting unit or General Manager duly made under section 272 of the RO 
Act has been provided to the member or General Manager; and  


(vi) where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Fair 
Work Commission under section 273 of the RO Act, there has been 
compliance.  


(f) in relation to recovery of wages activity:  


(i) the financial report on recovery of wages activity has been fairly and 
accurately prepared in accordance with the requirements of the reporting 
guidelines of the General Manager; and  


(ii) the committee of management instructed the auditor to include in the scope 
of the audit required under subsection 257(1) of the RO Act all recovery of 
wages activity by the reporting unit from which revenues had been derived for 
the financial year in respect of such activity; and  


(iii) no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages 
activity or donations or other contributions were deducted from monies 
recovered from employers on behalf of workers other than reported in the 
financial report on recovery of wages activity and the notes to the financial 
statements; and  



http://www.fwc.gov.au/





Published 5 July 2013 www.fwc.gov.au  8/53 


(iv) that prior to engaging in any recovery of wages activity, the organisation has 
disclosed to members by way of a written policy all fees to be charged or 
reimbursement of expenses required for recovery of wages activity, and any 
likely request for donations or other contributions in acting for a worker in 
recovery of wages activity; and  


(v) no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages 
activity or donations or other contributions were deducted from monies 
recovered from employers on behalf of workers until distributions of 
recovered money were made to the workers. 


 


This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management.  
  
 
Signature of designated officer: ...............................................................................................  


 


Name and title of designated officer: ....................................................................................... 


 


Dated: .......................................................................................................................................  
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 [Insert name of Reporting Unit]  
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  
for the period ended 30 June 2013 
 


  Consolidated Parent 
  2013 2012 2013 2012 
 Notes $ $ $ $ 


 Revenue      
 Membership subscription*  - - - - 
 Capitation fees 3A - - - - 
 Levies 3B - - - - 
 Interest 3C - - - - 
 Rental revenue 3D - - - - 
 Other revenue  - - - - 
 Total revenue  - - - - 
 Other Income      
 Grants and/or donations 3E - - - - 
 Share of net profit from associate 6D - - - - 
 Net gains from sale of assets 3F - - - - 
 Total other income   - - - - 
 Total income  - - - - 
       
 Expenses      
 Employee expenses 4A - - - - 
 Capitation fees 4B - - - - 
 Affiliation fees 4C - - - - 
 Administration expenses 4D - - - - 
 Grants or donations 4E - - - - 
 Depreciation and amortisation 4F - - - - 
 Finance costs 4G - - - - 
 Legal costs 4H - - - - 
 Audit fees 14 - - - - 
 Share of net loss from associate 6D - - - - 
 Write-down and impairment of assets 4I - - - - 
 Net losses from sale of assets 4J - - - - 
 Other expenses 4K - - - - 
 Total expenses  - - - - 
       
 Profit (loss) for the year  - - - - 
       
 Other comprehensive income      


 Items that will not be subsequently 
reclassified to profit or loss  - - - - 


 Gain on revaluation of land & 
buildings  - - - - 


       


 Total comprehensive income for the 
year  - - - - 


The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes. 
 
 
* As required by the Reporting Guidelines. Item to remain even if ‘nil’. 
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[Insert name of Reporting Unit] 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  
as at 30 June 2013 


  Consolidated Parent 
  2013 2012 2013 2012 
 Notes $ $ $ $ 


 ASSETS      
 Current Assets      
 Cash and cash equivalents 5A - - - - 
 Trade and other receivables 5B - - - - 
 Other current assets 5C - - - - 
 Total current assets  - - - - 
       
 Non-Current Assets      
 Land and buildings  6A - - - - 
 Plant and equipment 6B - - - - 
 Intangibles 6C - - - - 
 Investments in associates 6D - - - - 
 Other investments 6E - - - - 
 Other non-current assets 6F - - - - 
 Total non-financial assets  - - - - 
       
 Total assets  - - - - 
       
 LIABILITIES      
 Current Liabilities      
 Trade payables 7A - - - - 
 Other payables 7B - - - - 
 Employee provisions 8A - - - - 
 Total current liabilities  - - - - 
       
 Non-Current Liabilities      
 Employee provisions 8A - - - - 
 Other non-current liabilities 9A - - - - 
 Total non-current liabilities  - - - - 
       
 Total liabilities  - - - - 
       
 Net assets  - - - - 
       
 EQUITY      
 General funds 10A - - - - 
 Retained earnings (accumulated 


deficit)  - - - - 


 Total equity  - - - - 
The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes. 
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[Insert name of Reporting Unit] 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  
for the period ended 30 June 2013 
 


Consolidated  General 
funds 


Retained 
earnings 


Total equity 


 Notes $ $ $ 
Balance as at 1 July 2011  - - - 
Adjustment for errors  - - - 
Adjustment for changes in accounting 
policies  - - - 


Profit for the year  - - - 
Other comprehensive income for the 
year  - - - 


Transfer to/from [insert fund name] 10A - - - 
Transfer from retained earnings  - - - 
Closing balance as at 30 June 2012  - - - 
     
Adjustment for errors  - - - 
Adjustment for changes in accounting 
policies  - - - 


Profit for the year  - - - 
Other comprehensive income for the 
year  - - - 


Transfer to/from [insert fund name] 10A - - - 
Transfer from retained earnings  - - - 
Closing balance as at 30 June 2013  - - - 
 


Parent  General fund Retained 
earnings 


Total equity 


 Notes $ $ $ 
Balance as at 1 July 2011  - - - 
Adjustment for errors  - - - 
Adjustment for changes in accounting 
policies  - - - 


Profit for the year  - - - 
Other comprehensive income for the 
year  - - - 


Transfer to/from [insert fund name] 10A - - - 
Transfer from retained earnings  - - - 
Closing balance as at 30 June 2012  - - - 
     
Adjustment for errors  - - - 
Adjustment for changes in accounting 
policies  - - - 


Profit for the year  - - - 
Other comprehensive income for the 
year  - - - 


Transfer to/from [insert fund name] 10A - - - 
Transfer from retained earnings  - - - 
Closing balance as at 30 June 2013  - - - 
The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes. 
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[Insert name of Reporting Unit] 
CASH FLOW STATEMENT  
for the period ended 30 June 2013 
 


  Consolidated Parent 
  2013 2012 2013 2012 
 Notes $ $ $ $ 


 OPERATING ACTIVITIES      
 Cash received      
 Receipts from other reporting 


units/controlled entity(s) 11B - - - - 


 Interest  - - - - 
 Other   - - - - 
 Cash used      
 Employees  - - - - 
 Suppliers   - - - - 
 Payment to other reporting 


units/controlled entity(s) 11B - - - - 


 Net cash from (used by) operating 
activities 11A - - - - 


       
 INVESTING ACTIVITIES      
 Cash received      
 Proceeds from sale of plant and 


equipment  - - - - 


 Proceeds from sale of land and 
buildings  - - - - 


 Other  - - - - 
 Cash used      
 Purchase of plant and equipment  - - - - 
 Purchase of land and buildings  - - - - 
 Other  - - - - 
 Net cash from (used by) investing 
activities  - - - - 


       
 FINANCING ACTIVITIES      
 Cash received      
 Contributed equity  - - - - 
 Other  - - - - 
 Cash used      
 Repayment of borrowings  - - - - 
 Other  - - - - 
 Net cash from (used by) financing 
activities  - - - - 


 Net increase (decrease) in cash held  - - - - 
 Cash & cash equivalents at the 
beginning of the reporting period  - - - - 


 Cash & cash equivalents at the end 
of the reporting period 5A - - - - 


The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes. 
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[Insert name of Reporting Unit] 
RECOVERY OF WAGES ACTIVITY* 
for the period ended 30 June 2013 
 
 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
Cash assets in respect of recovered 
money at beginning of year - - - - 


Receipts     
Amounts recovered from employers in respect 
of wages etc. - - - - 


Interest received on recovered money - - - - 
Total receipts - - - - 
Payments     
Deductions of amounts due in respect of 
membership for:     


12 months or less - - - - 
Greater than 12 months - - - - 


Deductions of donations or other contributions 
to accounts or funds of:     


The reporting unit:     
name of account  - - - - 
name of fund - - - - 


Name of other reporting unit of the 
organisation:     


name of account - - - - 
name of fund - - - - 


Name of other entity:     
name of account - - - - 
name of fund - - - - 


Deductions of fees or reimbursement of 
expenses - - - - 


Payments to workers in respect of recovered 
money - - - - 


Total payments - - - - 
     
Cash asset’s in respect of recovered 
money at end of year - - - - 


 
Number of workers to which the monies 
recovered relates - - - - 


 
Aggregate payables to workers attributable to recovered monies but not yet distributed 
Payable balance - - - - 
Number of workers the payable relates to - - - - 
 
Fund or account operated for recovery of wages 
[Insert fund or account name.  If invested in 
assets include value of each asset] - - - - 


 
 
 
* As required by the Reporting Guidelines.  Item to remain even if ‘nil’. 
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Index to the Notes of the Financial Statements 
 


Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 


Note 2 Events after the Reporting Period 


Note 3 Income 


Note 4 Expenses 


Note 5 Current Assets 


Note 6 Non-current Assets 


Note 7 Current Liabilities 


Note 8 Provisions 


Note 9 Non-current Liabilities 


Note 10 Equity 


Note 11  Cash Flow  
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Note 18 Section 272 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 



http://www.fwc.gov.au/





Published 5 July 2013 www.fwc.gov.au  15/53 


Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
1.1 Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements 
 
 The financial statements are general purpose financial statements and have been 


prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued 
by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that apply for the reporting period 
and the Fair Work (Registered Organisation) Act 2009. For the purpose of preparing the 
general purpose financial statements, the [reporting unit] is a not-for-profit/[or for profit] 
entity. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance 
with the historical cost, except for certain assets and liabilities at measured at fair value, 
as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the 
fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets. Except where stated, no 
allowance is made for the effect of changing prices on the results or the financial 
position. The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars. 
 


1.2 Comparative amounts 
 
When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to 
conform to changes in presentation for the current financial year.  
 


1.3 Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates 
 


The following accounting assumptions or estimates have been identified that have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next reporting period. [provide list] 


 
1.4 New Australian Accounting Standards 
 


Adoption of New Australian Accounting Standard Requirements 
 
 No accounting standard has been adopted earlier than the application date stated in the 


standard. 
  


The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year 
except as follows: [list]  


 
Future Australian Accounting Standards Requirements 
 
New standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that were issued prior to the 
sign-off date and are applicable to the future reporting period that are expected to have a 
future financial impact on [reporting unit] include: [provide list] 


 
1.5 Basis of consolidation 
 


The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the 
[reporting unit] and entities (including special purpose entities) controlled by the 
[reporting unit] (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the [reporting unit] has the 
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits 
from its activities. 
 
Income and expense of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included 
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the effective date of 
acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Total comprehensive 
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the [reporting unit] and to the non-
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controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit 
balance. 
 
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to 
bring their accounting policies into line with those used by the [reporting unit]. 
 
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on 
consolidation. 
 
Changes in the [reporting unit] ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the 
[reporting unit] losing control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying 
amounts of the [reporting unit] interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to 
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between 
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the 
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of 
the [reporting unit]. 
 
When the [reporting unit] loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in 
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair 
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the 
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the 
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. When assets of the subsidiary are carried at 
revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been 
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts 
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are 
accounted for as if the [reporting unit] had directly disposed of the relevant assets 
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as specified 
by applicable Standards). The fair value of any investment retained in the former 
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial 
recognition for subsequent accounting under AASB 139 ‘Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement’ or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an 
investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity. 
 


1.5  Investment in associates 
 
An associate is an entity over which the [reporting unit] has significant influence and that 
is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power 
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not 
control or joint control over those policies. 
 
The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial 
statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is 
classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with AASB 5 
‘Non-current Asset Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.’ Under the equity 
method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the statement of financial 
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the share of the profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income of the associate. When the share of losses of an associate 
exceeds the interest in that associate, the [reporting unit] discontinues recognising its 
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that it has 
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. 
 
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the share of the net fair value of the identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of 
acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the 
investment. Any excess of the share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss. 
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1.6 Business combinations 
 


The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, 
except for those identified in the Fair Work Commissions reporting guidelines under 
item 12. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the 
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interest issued 
by the parent entity. The consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any 
contingent consideration arrangement and the fair value of any pre-existing equity 
interest in the subsidiary. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business 
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values on 
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the parent entity recognises any 
non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling 
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets. 
 
The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in 
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the 
acquiree over the fair value of the parent entity’s share of the net identifiable assets is 
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable 
assets of the subsidiary acquired and the measurement of all amounts has been 
reviewed, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase. 
 
If it is determined that the combination results in mutual benefit to both the members of 
the acquirer and the acquiree, the surplus of the fair value of the net identifiable assets 
acquired over the consideration paid will be recognised in member’s funds as a business 
combination reserve. 
 
Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in 
the future are discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount 
rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which similar 
borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and 
conditions. 
 
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts 
classified as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes 
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.  
 


1.7 Acquisition of assets and or liabilities that do not constitute a business 
combination  
 
The net book value of assets and or liabilities transferred to [reporting unit] for no 
consideration is used to account for an amalgamation under Part 2 of Chapter 3 of the 
Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009/a restructure of the branches of the 
[reporting unit]/a determination by the General Manager under subsections 245(1) of the 
Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009/ a revocation by the General Manager 
under subsection 249(1) of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009.  
 
The assets and liabilities are recognised as at the date of transfer.  
 


1.8 Revenue  
 


Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.  
 
Revenue from subscriptions is accounted for on an accrual basis and is recorded as 
revenue in the year to which it relates. 
 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when, the risks and rewards of ownership 
have been transferred to the buyer, the entity retains no managerial involvement or 
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effective control over the goods, the revenue and transaction costs incurred can be 
reliably measured, and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the 
transaction will flow to the entity. 
 
Donation income is recognised when it is received. 
 
Receivables for goods and services, which have 30 day terms, are recognised at the 
nominal amounts due less any impairment allowance account. Collectability of debts is 
reviewed at end of the reporting period. Allowances are made when collectability of the 
debt is no longer probable.  
 
Interest revenue is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. 
 
Rental revenue from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the relevant lease. 


 
1.9 Government grants5 


 
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the 
[reporting unit] will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will 
be received. 


 
Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the 
periods in which the [reporting unit] recognises as expenses the related costs for which 
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary 
condition is that the [reporting unit] should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the statement of financial position 
and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of 
the related assets. 


 
Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already 
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the [reporting unit] 
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they 
become receivable. 


 
1.10 Gains 
 


Sale of assets 
 
 Gains and losses from disposal of assets are recognised when control of the asset has 


passed to the buyer. 
 
1.11 Capitation fees and levies 
 


Capitation fees and levies are to be recognised on an accrual basis and record as a 
revenue and/or expense in the year to which it relates. 


 
1.12 Employee benefits 


 
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and 
salaries, annual leave, long service leave and termination benefits when it is probable 
that settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably.  


 
Liabilities for short-term employee benefits (as defined in AASB 119 Employee Benefits) 
and termination benefits due within twelve months of the end of reporting period are 


                                                
5  Policy relevant for for-profit reporting units. Not-for-profit reporting units must comply with AASB1004 Contributions. 
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measured at their nominal amounts. The nominal amount is calculated with regard to the 
rates expected to be paid on settlement of the liability.  


  
 Other long-term employee benefits are measured as the present value of the estimated 


future cash outflows to be made by the reporting unit in respect of services provided by 
employees up to reporting date.  


  
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense 
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. 
 
Provision is made for separation and redundancy benefit payments. Reporting Unit 
recognises a provision for termination when it has developed a detailed formal plan for 
the terminations and has informed those employees affected that it will carry out the 
terminations. 


  
1.13 Leases 
 
 Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer 


substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are 
classified as operating leases. 


 
 Where an asset is acquired by means of a finance lease, the asset is capitalised at either 


the fair value of the lease property or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease 
payments at the inception of the contract and a liability is recognised at the same time 
and for the same amount.   


  
 The discount rate used is the interest rate implicit in the lease. Leased assets are 


amortised over the period of the lease. Lease payments are allocated between the 
principal component and the interest expense.  


  
 Operating lease payments are expensed on a straight-line basis which is representative 


of the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets. 
 


Rental revenue from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an 
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on 
a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 


1.14 Borrowing costs 
 
 All borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in the period in which they are 


incurred.  
 


1.15 Cash  
 
 Cash is recognised at its nominal amount. Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on 


hand, deposits held at call with bank, other short-term highly liquid investments with 
original maturity of 3 months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and bank overdrafts. Bank 
overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the 
consolidated statement of financial position. 


 
1.16 Financial instruments 
 


Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a [reporting unit] entity 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or 
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 


 
1.17 Financial assets  
 


Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets at 
fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial 
assets and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose 
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way 
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised upon trade date 
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that 
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in 
the marketplace.  
 
Fair value through profit or loss 
 
Financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit or loss when the financial 
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at fair value through profit or loss. 
 
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if: 
• it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or 
• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the 


reporting unit manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or 


• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 
 


A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at fair 
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition if: 
• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition 


inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or 
• the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or 


both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in 
accordance with the reporting units documented risk management or investment 
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or 


• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and AASB 
139 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ permits the entire 
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at fair value through profit or 
loss.  


 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains 
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss 
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial 
asset and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item in the statement of 
comprehensive income.  
 
Held-to-maturity investments 
 
Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the 
reporting unit has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-
to-maturity investments. Held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method less any impairment. 
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Available-for-sale 
 
Listed shares and listed redeemable notes held by the reporting unit that are traded in an 
active market are classified as available-for-sale and are stated at fair value. The 
reporting unit also has investments in unlisted shares that are not traded in an active 
market but that are also classified as available-for-sale financial assets and stated at fair 
value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve, with the 
exception of impairment losses, interest calculated using the effective interest method, 
and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets, which are recognised in 
profit or loss. Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the 
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is 
reclassified to profit or loss. 
 
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when 
the reporting unit right to receive the dividends is established. The fair value of available-
for-sale monetary assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign 
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. The foreign 
exchange gains and losses that are recognised in profit or loss are determined based on 
the amortised cost of the monetary asset. Other foreign exchange gains and losses are 
recognised in other comprehensive income. 
 
Loan and receivables 
 
Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments 
that are not quoted in an active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans 
and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less 
impairment. Interest is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-
term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial. 
 
Effective interest method 
 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt 
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset, or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net 
carrying amount on initial recognition. 
 
Income is recognised on an effective interest rate basis except for debt instruments other 
than those financial assets that are recognised at fair value through profit or loss. 
 
Impairment of financial assets 


  
Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for 
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be 
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that 
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows 
of the investment have been affected. 
 
For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are 
assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a 
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could 
include the reporting units past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the 
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 60 days, 
as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate 
with default on receivables. 
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For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss 
recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective 
interest rate. 


 
For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as 
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar 
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods. 


 
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for 
all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is 
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered 
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of 
amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in 
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. 
 
When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains 
or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit 
or loss in the period. 
 
For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount 
of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount 
of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the 
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised. 
 
In respect of available-for-sale equity securities, impairment losses previously recognised 
in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value 
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. In respect of 
available-for-sale debt securities, impairment losses are subsequently reversed through 
profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to 
an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss. 


 
Derecognition of financial assets 


 
The reporting unit derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the 
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. The difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and 
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss. 
 


1.18 Financial Liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit or 
loss’ or other financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are recognised and derecognised 
upon ‘trade date’. 
 
Fair value through profit or loss 


 
Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit or loss when the financial 
liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at fair value through profit or loss. 


 
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: 
• it has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or 
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• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the 
reporting unit manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or 


• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 
 


A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at 
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition if: 
• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition 


inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or 
• the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or 


both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in 
accordance with the reporting units documented risk management or investment 
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or 


• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and AASB 
139 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ permits the entire 
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at fair value through profit or 
loss. 


 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any 
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or 
loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and 
is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item in the statement of comprehensive 
income.  
 
Other financial liabilities 


 
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings and trade and other payables, are initially 
measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. 
 
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. 


 
Derecognition of financial liabilities 
 
The reporting unit derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the reporting 
units obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the 
carrying amounts of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and 
payable is recognised in profit or loss. 
 


1.19 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
 


 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are not recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Position but are reported in the relevant notes. They may arise from uncertainty 
as to the existence of a liability or asset or represent an existing liability or asset in 
respect of which the amount cannot be reliably measured. Contingent assets are 
disclosed when settlement is probable but not virtually certain, and contingent liabilities 
are disclosed when settlement is greater than remote. 


 
1.20 Land, Buildings, Plant and Equipment  
 


Asset Recognition Threshold 
 
 Purchases of land, buildings, plant and equipment are recognised initially at cost in the 


Statement of Financial Position. The initial cost of an asset includes an estimate of the 
cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.  
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Revaluations—Land and Buildings 
 
Following initial recognition at cost, land and buildings are carried at fair value less 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations 
are performed with sufficient frequency such that the carrying amount of assets do not 
differ materially from those that would be determined using fair values as at the reporting 
date.  


 
Revaluation adjustments are made on a class basis. Any revaluation increment is 
credited to equity under the heading of asset revaluation reserve except to the extent 
that it reversed a previous revaluation decrement of the same asset class that was 
previously recognised in the surplus/deficit. Revaluation decrements for a class of assets 
are recognised directly in the profit or loss except to the extent that they reverse a 
previous revaluation increment for that class. Any accumulated depreciation as at the 
revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the 
asset is restated to the revalued amount. 
 
Depreciation 


 
 Depreciable property, plant and equipment assets are written-off to their estimated 


residual values over their estimated useful life using, in all cases, the straight line method 
of depreciation. Depreciation rates (useful lives), residual values and methods are 
reviewed at each reporting date and necessary adjustments are recognised in the 
current, or current and future reporting periods, as appropriate.  


 
 Depreciation rates applying to each class of depreciable asset are based on the following 


useful lives: 
 
  2013  2012 
 Land & buildings x years  x years 
 Plant and equipment x to x years  x to x years 
 


Derecognition 
 
An item of land, buildings, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when 
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss 
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset and is recognised in the profit and loss. 
 


1.21 Investment property 
 
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation 
(including property under construction for such purposes). Investment properties are 
measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising 
from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit and loss in 
the period in which they arise. 
 
An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property 
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from 
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is 
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised. 
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1.22 Intangibles 
 
 Intangible assets with finite lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less 


accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is 
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life. The estimated useful 
lives and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the 
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible 
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses. The useful life of [reporting unit] intangible assets are: 


 
  2013  2012 
 Intangibles x to x years  x to x years 


 
Derecognition 
 
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an 
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset are recognised in profit and loss when the asset is 
derecognised. 


 
1.23 Impairment for non-financial assets  
 


All assets are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting period to the extent 
that there is an impairment trigger. Where indications of impairment exist, the asset’s 
recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment adjustment made if the asset’s 
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount.  
 
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its 
value in use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be 
derived from the asset. Where the future economic benefit of an asset is not primarily 
dependent on the asset’s ability to generate future cash flows, and the asset would be 
replaced if the [reporting unit] were deprived of the asset, its value in use is taken to be 
its depreciated replacement cost. 


 
1.24 Non-current assets held for sale 
 


Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be 
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This 
condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the non-current 
asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be 
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a 
completed sale within one year from the date of classification. 


 
Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous 
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. 


 
1.25 Taxation 
 


 [Reporting unit] is exempt from income tax under section 50.1 of the Income Tax 
Assessment Act 1997 however still has obligation for Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and the 
Goods and Services Tax (GST). 


 
 Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST except: 


• where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation 
Office; and  


• for receivables and payables. 
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The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included 
as part of receivables or payables. 
 
Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. The GST 
component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is 
recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office is classified within 
operating cash flows. 


 
1.26 Going concern 
 


[Reporting unit] is reliant on the agreed financial support of [xx] to continue on a going 
concern basis. This agreed financial support is to continue until [xx]. This is an interest 
free agreement with repayments to be made on a [xx] basis from [xx]. 


 
[Reporting unit] has agreed to provide [xx] with financial support to ensure they can 
continue on a going concern basis. This agreed financial support is to continue until [xx]. 
This is an interest free agreement with repayments to be made on a [xx] basis from [xx]. 
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Note 2 Events after the reporting period 
 
There were no events that occurred after 30 June 2013, or prior to the signing of the financial 
statements, that would affect the ongoing structure and financial activities of [reporting unit]. 
  
 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
Note 3 Income 
 
Note 3A: Capitation fees* 
 
[list name and amount for each reporting unit] - - - - 
Total capitation fees - - - - 
     
 
Note 3B: Levies* 
 
[list purpose and amount for each compulsory 
or voluntary levy or appeal] 


- - - - 


Total levies - - - - 
     
 
Note 3C: Interest 
 
Deposits - - - - 
Loans - - - - 
Total interest - - - - 
     
 
Note 3D: Rental revenue 
 
Properties - - - - 
Other - - - - 
Total rental revenue - - - - 
     
 
Note 3E: Grants or donations* 
 
Grants - - - - 
Donations - - - - 
Total grants or donations - - - - 
     
 
Note 3F: Net gains from sale of assets 
 
Land and buildings - - - - 
Plant and equipment - - - - 
Intangibles - - - - 
Total net gain from sale of assets - - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Note 4  Expenses 
 
Note 4A: Employee expenses* 


 
Holders of office:     


Wages and salaries - - - - 
Superannuation - - - - 
Leave and other entitlements - - - - 
Separation and redundancies - - - - 
Other employee expenses - - - - 


Subtotal employee expenses holders of 
office - - - - 


     
Employees other than office holders:     


Wages and salaries - - - - 
Superannuation - - - - 
Leave and other entitlements - - - - 
Separation and redundancies - - - - 
Other employee expenses - - - - 


Subtotal employee expenses employees 
other than office holders - - - - 


Total employee expenses - - - - 
     
 
Note 4B: Capitation fees* 
 
[list name and amount for each reporting unit] - - - - 
Total capitation fees - - - - 
     
 
 
Note 4C: Affiliation fees* 
 
[list name and amount for each entity] - - - - 
Total affiliation fees/subscriptions - - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Note 4D: Administration expenses 
 
Consideration to employers for payroll 
deductions* - - - - 


Compulsory levies*     
[list each compulsory levy including 
purpose and name of entity] - - - - 


Fees/allowances - meeting and conferences* - - - - 
Conference and meeting expenses* - - - - 
Contractors/consultants - - - - 
Property expenses - - - - 
Office expenses - - - - 
Information communications technology - - - - 
Other - - - - 
Subtotal administration expense - - - - 
     
Operating lease rentals:     


Minimum lease payments - - - - 
Total administration expenses - - - - 
     
 
Note 4E: Grants or donations* 
 
Grants - - - - 
Donations - - - - 
Total grants or donations - - - - 
     
 
Note 4F: Depreciation and amortisation 
 
Depreciation     


Land & buildings - - - - 
Property, plant and equipment - - - - 


Total depreciation - - - - 
Amortisation     


Intangibles - - - - 
Total amortisation - - - - 
Total depreciation and amortisation - - - - 
     
 
Note 4G: Finance costs 
 
Finance leases - - - - 
Overdrafts/loans - - - - 
Unwinding of discount - - - - 
Total finance costs - - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Note 4H: Legal costs* 
 
Litigation - - - - 
Other legal matters - - - - 
Total legal costs - - - - 
     
 
Note 4I: Write-down and impairment of assets 
 
Asset write-downs and impairments of:     


Land and buildings - - - - 
Plant and equipment - - - - 
Intangible assets - - - - 
Other - - - - 


Total write-down and impairment of assets - - - - 
 
Note 4J: Net losses from sale of assets 
 
Land and buildings - - - - 
Plant and equipment - - - - 
Intangibles - - - - 
Total net losses from asset sales - - - - 
     
 
Note 4K: Other expenses 
 
Penalties - via RO Act or RO Regulations* - - - - 
Total other expenses - - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Note 5 Current Assets 
 
Note 5A: Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash at bank  - - - - 
Cash on hand - - - - 
Short term deposits - - - - 
Other - - - - 
Total cash and cash equivalents - - - - 
     
 
 
Note 5B: Trade and Other Receivables 
 
Receivables from other reporting unit[s]*     


[list name and amount for each other 
reporting unit] - - - - 


Total receivables from other reporting 
unit[s] - - - - 


 
Less provision for doubtful debts*     


[list name and amount for each other 
reporting unit] - - - - 


Total provision for doubtful debts - - - - 
Receivable from other reporting unit[s] 
(net) - - - - 


 
Other receivables:     


GST receivable from the Australian 
Taxation Office - - - - 


Other trade receivables - - - - 
Total other receivables - - - - 
Total trade and other receivables (net) - - - - 
 
Note 5C: Other Current Assets 
 
[Disclose each asset class] - - - - 
Total other current assets - - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Note 6 Non-current Assets 
 
Note 6A: Land and buildings  
 
Land and buildings:     


 fair value - - - - 
 accumulated depreciation - - - - 


Total land and buildings  - - - - 
     
 
Reconciliation of the Opening and Closing Balances of Land and Buildings 
 


As at 1 July      
Gross book value - - - - 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment - - - - 
Net book value 1 July  - - - - 
Additions:     


By purchase  - - - - 
From acquisition of entities (including 
restructuring) - - - - 


Revaluations - - - - 
Impairments - - - - 
Depreciation expense - - - - 
Other movement [give details below] - - - - 
Disposals:     
 From disposal of entities (including 
restructuring) - - - - 


 Other - - - - 
Net book value 30 June  - - - - 
Net book value as of 30 June represented 
by:     


Gross book value - - - - 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment - - - - 
Net book value 30 June  - - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Note 6B: Plant and equipment  
 
Plant and equipment:     


 at cost - - - - 
 accumulated depreciation - - - - 


Total plant and equipment  - - - - 
 
Reconciliation of the Opening and Closing Balances of Plant and Equipment 
 
As at 1 July      
Gross book value - - - - 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment - - - - 
Net book value 1 July  - - - - 
Additions:     


By purchase  - - - - 
From acquisition of entities (including 
restructuring) - - - - 


Impairments - - - - 
Depreciation expense - - - - 
Other movement [give details below] - - - - 
Disposals:    - 
 From disposal of entities (including 
restructuring) - - - - 


 Other - - - - 
Net book value 30 June  - - - - 
Net book value as of 30 June represented 
by:     


Gross book value - - - - 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment - - - - 
Net book value 30 June  - - - - 
 
Note 6C: Intangibles  
 
Computer software at cost:     


 internally developed  - - - - 
 purchased - - - - 
 accumulated amortisation  - - - - 


Total intangibles  - - - - 
 
  



http://www.fwc.gov.au/





Published 5 July 2013 www.fwc.gov.au  34/53 


 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Reconciliation of the Opening and Closing Balances of Intangibles  
 
As at 1 July      
Gross book value - - - - 
Accumulated amortisation and impairment - - - - 
Net book value 1 July  - - - - 
Additions:     


By purchase  - - - - 
From acquisition of entities (including 
restructuring) - - - - 


Impairments - - - - 
Amortisation  - - - - 
Other movements [give details below] - - - - 
Disposals:     


From disposal of entities (including 
restructuring) - - - - 


Other - - - - 
Net book value 30 June  - - - - 
 
Net book value as of 30 June represented 
by: 


    


Gross book value - - - - 
Accumulated amortisation and impairment  - - - - 
Net book value 30 June  - - - - 
 
Note 6D: Investments in Associates 
 
Investments in associates:     


[list associates] - - - - 
Total equity accounted investments - - - - 
 
Details of investments accounted for using the equity method 
 
Consolidated  Ownership 
Name of entity Principal 


activity 
2013 


% 
2012 


% 
Associates:    


[list ]i - - - 
 
(i) The published fair value for the investment in [name of associates] is $x (2011: $x) 
 
Parent  Ownership 
Name of entity Principal 


activity 
2013 


% 
2012 


% 
Associates:    


[list ]i - - - 
 
(i) The published fair value for the investment in [name of associates] is $x (2011: $x) 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Summary financial information of associates 
 
Statement of financial position:     


Assets - - - - 
Liabilities - - - - 
Net assets - - - - 


Statement of comprehensive income:     
Income - - - - 
Expenses  - - - - 
Net surplus/(deficit) - - - - 


Share of associates’ net surplus/(deficit):     
Share of net surplus/(deficit) before tax - - - - 
Income tax expense - - - - 


Share of associates net surplus/(deficit) 
after tax - - - - 


 
Dividends received from associates $x (2011:$x) 


 
Share of net profits from associates 
 
[list each entity] - - - - 
Total share of net profits from associates - - - - 
     
 
Share of net loss from associates 
 
[list each entity] - - - - 
Total share of net loss from associates - - - - 
     
 
Note 6E: Other Investments  
 
Deposits - - - - 
Other - - - - 
Total other investments  - - - - 
     
 
Note 6F: Other Non-current Assets 
 
Prepayments - - - - 
Other - - - - 
Total other non-financial assets - - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Note 7 Current Liabilities 
 
Note 7A: Trade payables 
 
Trade creditors and accruals - - - - 
Operating lease rentals - - - - 
Subtotal trade creditors - - - - 
     
Payables to other reporting unit[s]*     
[list name and amount for each reporting unit] - - - - 
Subtotal payables to other reporting 
unit[s] - - - - 


     
Total trade payables - - - - 
 
Settlement is usually made within 30 days. 
 
Note 7B: Other payables 
 
Wages and salaries - - - - 
Superannuation - - - - 
Consideration to employers for payroll 
deductions* - - - - 


Legal costs* - - - - 
Prepayments received/unearned revenue - - - - 
GST payable - - - - 
Other - - - - 
Total other payables - - - - 
 
Total other payables are expected to be 
settled in: 


    


No more than 12 months - - - - 
More than 12 months - - - - 


Total other payables - - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Note 8 Provisions 
 
Note 8A: Employee Provisions* 
 
Office Holders:     


Annual leave - - - - 
Long service leave - - - - 
Separations and redundancies - - - - 
Other  - - - - 


Subtotal employee provisions—office 
holders - - - - 


Employees other than office holders:     
Annual leave - - - - 
Long service leave - - - - 
Separations and redundancies - - - - 
Other  - - - - 


Subtotal employee provisions—employees 
other than office holders - - - - 


Total employee provisions - - - - 
     
Current  - - - - 
Non Current - - - - 
Total employee provisions - - - - 
 
Note 9 Non-current Liabilities  
 
Note 9A: Other non-current liabilities 
 
[list classes] - - - - 
Total other non-current liabilities - - - - 
 
Note 10 Equity 
 
Note 10A: General Funds 
 
[insert name of individual fund/reserve]     
Balance as at start of year - - - - 


Transferred to reserve - - - - 
Transferred out of reserve - - - - 


Balance as at end of year - - - - 
[insert name of individual fund/reserve]     
Balance as at start of year - - - - 


Transferred to reserve - - - - 
Transferred out of reserve - - - - 


Balance as at end of year - - - - 
Total Reserves - - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Note 11 Cash Flow  
 
Note 11A: Cash Flow Reconciliation 
 
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per 
Balance Sheet to Cash Flow Statement:    


     
Cash and cash equivalents as per:     
Cash flow statement - - - - 
Balance sheet - - - - 
Difference -  - - - 
 
The difference is represented by... (to be included only where there is a difference). 
 
Reconciliation of profit/(deficit) to net cash 
from operating activities:     


Profit/(deficit) for the year - - - - 
     
Adjustments for non-cash items     
Depreciation/amortisation - - - - 
Net write-down of non-financial assets - - - - 
Gain on disposal of assets - - - - 
     
Changes in assets/liabilities     
(Increase)/decrease in net receivables  - - - - 
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments - - - - 
Increase/(decrease) in supplier payables - - - - 
Increase/(decrease) in other payables - - - - 
Increase/(decrease) in employee provisions - - - - 
Increase/(decrease) in other provisions - - - - 
Net cash from (used by) operating 
activities - - - - 


 
Note 11B: Cash flow information* 
 
Cash inflows     
[list each reporting unit/controlled entity] - - - - 
Total cash inflows - - - - 
     
Cash outflows     
[list each reporting unit/controlled entity] - - - - 
Total cash outflows - - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Note 12 Contingent Liabilities, Assets and Commitments 
 
Note 12A: Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Operating lease commitments—as lessee 
[Details of the nature of the leases and the average remaining term] 
Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 30 June are as 
follows: 
Within one year - - - - 
After one year but not more than five years - - - - 
More than five years - - - - 
  - - - - 


Operating lease commitments—as lessor 
[Details of the nature of the leases and average remaining terms, including any provisions for fixed 
increases in rent] 
 
Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 30 June are as 
follows: 
Within one year - - - - 
After one year but not more than five years - - - - 
After five years - - - - 
  - - - - 
Capital commitments 
At 30 June 2013 the entity has commitments of $XX (2012: XX) principally relating to XXX. 
 
Finance lease commitments—as lessee 
Within one year - - - - 
After one year but not more than five years - - - - 
More than five years - - - - 
Total minimum lease payments - - - - 
Less amounts representing finance charges - - - - 
Present value of minimum lease 
payments - - - - 


      
Included in the financial statements as: - - - - 
Current interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings 


- - - - 


Non-current interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings 


- - - - 


Total included in interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings - - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
Finance leases—lessor     
[Insert general description of lease arrangements] 
Minimum lease payments - - - - 
Unguaranteed residual value - - - - 
Gross investment - - - - 
Unearned finance income - - - - 
Net investment (present value of the 
minimum lease payments) - - - - 


      
Gross amount of minimum lease 
payments: 


    


Within one year - - - - 
After one year but not more than five years - - - - 
More than five years - - - - 
Total gross amount of minimum lease 
payments - - - - 


      
Present value of minimum lease payments:     
Within one year - - - - 
After one year but not more than five years - - - - 
More than five years - - - - 
Total present value of minimum lease 
payments - - - - 


      
 


Other contingent assets or liabilities (i.e. legal claims) 
 


[Insert details including an estimate of the financial effect of contingent assets or liabilities. With 
respect to contingent liabilities, uncertainties around the outflow of resources required to settle the 
contingent obligation should be disclosed and any possible reimbursement. Contingencies may be 
aggregated only if they relate to a similar class.] 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
Note 13 Related Party Disclosures 
 
Note 13A: Related Party Transactions for the Reporting Period 
 
[List all related party transactions including the nature of the related party relationship, information 
about those transactions, terms and conditions, amount of the transaction and outstanding balances 
including commitments.] 
 
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related 
parties for the relevant year.  
 
Revenue received from [list related party] 
includes the following:     


[list individual items] - - - - 
     


Expenses paid to [list related party] 
includes the following:     


[list individual items] - - - - 
     
Amounts owed by [list related party] 
include the following:      


[list individual items] - - - - 
     
Amounts owed to [list related party] 
include the following:     


[list individual items] - - - - 
     


Loans from/to [list related party] includes 
the following:     


[list individual items] - - - - 
     


Assets transferred from/to [list related 
party] includes the following:     


[list individual items] - - - - 
 
Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 
 
The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in 
arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances for sales and purchases at the year end are 
unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided 
or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 30 June 2013, the 
[reporting unit] has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related 
parties and declared person or body (2012: $Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year 
through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party 
operates.  
 
The loan provided to [list related party] receives a rate of interest of x% and is repayable after x years. 
 
Property with a book value of $x was transferred to [list related party] for $x consideration which 
represents market price for such an asset. 
 
Premises on a rent free basis were provided to [list related party] for a period of six months. Had 
market rental been charged by the reporting unit the amount received would have been $x. 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Note 13B: Key Management Personnel Remuneration for the Reporting Period 
 
Short-term employee benefits     


Salary (including annual leave taken) - - - - 
Annual leave accrued - - - - 
Performance bonus - - - - 
[other major categories] - - - - 


Total short-term employee benefits - - - - 
     
Post-employment benefits:     


Superannuation  - - - - 
Total post-employment benefits - - - - 
     
Other long-term benefits:     


Long-service leave - - - - 
Total other long-term benefits - - - - 
     
Termination benefits - - - - 
Total - - - - 
 
Note 13C: Transactions with key management personnel and their close family members 
 
Loans to/from key management personnel     
[list individual and details of the loans 
including terms and conditions] - - - - 


     
Other transactions with key management 
personnel     


[list individuals and details of the transactions 
including terms and conditions] - - - - 


 
Note 14 Remuneration of Auditors 
 
Value of the services provided     


Financial statement audit services - - - - 
Other services - - - - 


Total remuneration of auditors - - - - 
 
[No other services were provided by the auditors of the financial statements.] or [Provide details of 
other services provided by the auditors of the financial statements.] 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Note 15 Financial Instruments 
 
[General discussion on how the entity manages risk and the risk exposures (i.e. credit risk, liquidity 
risk, price/interest rate market risks) 


 


Note 15A: Categories of Financial Instruments 
 
Financial Assets 
 
Fair value through profit or loss:     


[list categories] - - - - 
Total - - - - 
Held-to-maturity investments:     


[list categories] - - - - 
Total - - - - 
Available-for-sale assets:     


[list categories] - - - - 
Total - - - - 
Loans and receivables:     


[list categories] - - - - 
Total - - - - 
     
Carrying amount of financial assets - - - - 
 
Financial Liabilities 
 
Fair value through profit or loss:     


[list categories] - - - - 
Total - - - - 
Other financial liabilities:     


[list categories] - - - - 
Total - - - - 
     
Carrying amount of financial liabilities - - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Note 15B: Net Income and Expense from Financial Assets 
 
Held-to-maturity   
Interest revenue  -  - - - 
Exchange gains/(loss)  -  - - - 
Impairment  -  - - - 
Gain/loss on disposal  -  - - - 
Net gain/(loss) held-to-maturity  -  - - - 
Loans and receivables   
Interest revenue  -  - - - 
Exchange gains/(loss)  -  - - - 
Impairment  -  - - - 
Gain/loss on disposal  -  - - - 
Net gain/(loss) from loans and receivables  -  - - - 
Available for sale   
Interest revenue  -  - - - 
Dividend revenue  -  - - - 
Exchange gains/(loss)  -  - - - 
Gain/loss recognised in equity  -  - - - 
Amounts reversed from equity:   
Impairment  -  - - - 
Fair value changes reversed on disposal  -  - - - 
Gain/loss on disposal  -  - - - 
Net gain/(loss) from available for sale  -  - - - 
Fair value through profit and loss   
Held for trading:   
Change in fair value  -  - - - 
Interest revenue  -  - - - 
Dividend revenue  -  - - - 
Exchange gains/(loss)  -  - - - 
Total held for trading  -  - - - 
Designated as fair value through profit and loss:   
Change in fair value  -  - - - 
Interest revenue  -  - - - 
Dividend revenue  -  - - - 
Exchange gains/(loss)  -  - - - 
Total designated as fair value through 
profit and loss  -  - - - 


Net gain/(loss) at fair value through profit 
and loss  -  - - - 


Net gain/(loss) from financial assets  -  - - - 
The net income/expense from financial assets not at fair value from profit and loss is $... (2012: $...).  
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Note 15C: Net Income and Expense from Financial Liabilities 
 
At amortised cost   
Interest expense  -  - - - 
Exchange gains/(loss)  -  - - - 
Gain/loss on disposal  -  - - - 
Net gain/(loss) financial liabilities - at 
amortised cost  -  - - - 


Fair value through profit and loss   
Held for trading:   
Change in fair value  -  - - - 
Interest expense  -  - - - 
Exchange gains/(loss)  -  - - - 
Total held for trading  -  - - - 
Designated as fair value through profit and loss:   
Change in fair value  -  - - - 
Interest expense  -  - - - 
Total designated as fair value through 
profit and loss  -  - - - 


Net gain/(loss) at fair value through profit 
and loss  -  - - - 


Net gain/(loss) from financial liabilities  -  - - - 
The net income/expense from financial liabilities not at fair value from profit and loss is $ ... (2012: $...). 
 
Note 15D: Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
 
Consolidated Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 


 amount value amount value 
 2013 2013 2012 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 


Financial Assets 
[List each class] - -  -  -  
Total  - -  -  -  
Financial Liabilities 
[List each class]  -  -  -  - 
Total  -  -  -  - 
   
Parent Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 


 amount value amount value 
 2013 2013 2012 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 


Financial Assets 
[List each class] - -  -  -  
Total  - -  -  -  
Financial Liabilities 
[List each class]  -  -  -  - 
Total  -  -  -  - 
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Fair value measurements categorised by fair value hierarchy—Consolidated 
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured at fair value, 
by valuation method. 
The different levels are defined below: 
Level 1: Fair value obtained from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical 
instruments 
Level 2: Fair value derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 
observable for the instrument, either directly or indirectly. 
Level 3: Fair value derived from inputs that are not based on observable market data. 
Fair value hierarchy for financial assets 


 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 


[List Category] 
[List each class]  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Total  -  -  -  -  -  - 
[Class] was transferred from [Level 1/Level 2] to [Level 1/Level 2] due to [reasons for transfer]. 
 
Fair value hierarchy for financial liabilities 


 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 


[List Category] 
[List each class]  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Total  -  -  -  -  -  - 
[Class] was transferred from [Level 1/Level 2] to [Level 1/Level 2] due to [reasons for transfer]. 
 
Fair value measurements categorised by fair value hierarchy—Parent 
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured at fair value, 
by valuation method. 
The different levels are defined below: 
Level 1: Fair value obtained from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical 
instruments 
Level 2: Fair value derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 
observable for the instrument, either directly or indirectly. 
Level 3: Fair value derived from inputs that are not based on observable market data. 
Fair value hierarchy for financial assets 


 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 


[List Category] 
[List each class]  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Total  -  -  -  -  -  - 
[Class] was transferred from [Level 1/Level 2] to [Level 1/Level 2] due to [reasons for transfer]. 
 
Fair value hierarchy for financial liabilities 


 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 


[List Category] 
[List each class]  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Total  -  -  -  -  -  - 
[Class] was transferred from [Level 1/Level 2] to [Level 1/Level 2] due to [reasons for transfer]. 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Note 15E: Credit Risk 
 
[discussion of exposure to risk, objectives and policies for managing risk and changes from prior 
period][identify concentrations of risk] 
The following table illustrates the entity's gross exposure to credit risk, excluding any 
collateral or credit enhancements. 


 
Financial assets   
[List by class] - - - - 
Total  -  - - - 
Financial liabilities   
[List by class]  - - -  - 
Total  - - -  - 


In relation to the entity's gross credit risk the following collateral is held: [insert details] 


 
Credit quality of financial instruments not past due or individually determined as impaired - 
Consolidated 
 Not Past 


Due Nor 
Impaired 


Past due or 
impaired 


Not Past 
Due Nor 
Impaired 


Past due or 
impaired 


 2013 2013 2012 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
[List by class] -  -  -  - 
Total  -  -  -  - 
[provide relevant details regarding credit risk and quality of each class of financial asset that is 
either not past due nor impaired or past due or impaired] 
 
Credit quality of financial instruments not past due or individually determined as impaired - 
Parent 
 Not Past 


Due Nor 
Impaired 


Past due or 
impaired 


Not Past 
Due Nor 
Impaired 


Past due or 
impaired 


 2013 2013 2012 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
[List by class] -  -  -  - 
Total  -  -  -  - 
[provide relevant details regarding credit risk and quality of each class of financial asset that is 
either not past due nor impaired or past due or impaired] 
 
Ageing of financial assets that were past due but not impaired for 2013—Consolidated 
 0 to 30 


days 
31 to 60 


days 
61 to 90 


days 90+ days Total 


 $ $ $ $ $ 
[List by class] - - - - - 
Total - - - - - 
  



http://www.fwc.gov.au/





Published 5 July 2013 www.fwc.gov.au  48/53 


Ageing of financial assets that were past due but not impaired for 2012—Consolidated 
 0 to 30 days 31 to 60 days 61 to 90 


days 90+ days Total 


 $ $ $ $ $ 
[List by class] - - - - - 
Total - - - - - 
The following list of assets have been individually assessed as impaired 
[including factors that have been used in assessing the asset to be impaired] 
 
Ageing of financial assets that were past due but not impaired for 2013—Parent 
 0 to 30 


days 
31 to 60 


days 
61 to 90 


days 90+ days Total 


 $ $ $ $ $ 
[List by class] - - - - - 
Total - - - - - 
 
Ageing of financial assets that were past due but not impaired for 2012—Consolidated 
 0 to 30 days 31 to 60 days 61 to 90 


days 90+ days Total 


 $ $ $ $ $ 
[List by class] - - - - - 
Total - - - - - 
The following list of assets have been individually assessed as impaired 
[including factors that have been used in assessing the asset to be impaired] 
 
Note 15F: Liquidity Risk 
 
[Discuss how the entity manages liquidity risk for non-derivative financial liabilities]  
Contractual maturities for financial liabilities 2013 - Consolidated 
 


On 
Demand 


< 1 year 
$ 


1– 2 
years 


$ 


2– 5 
years 


$ 
>5 years 


$ 
Total 


$ 
[List by class]  -  -  - -  -  -  
Total  - -  - -  -  -  
Maturities for financial liabilities 2012 - Consolidated 
 


On 
Demand 


< 1 year 
$ 


1– 2 years 
$ 


2– 5 
years 


$ 
>5 years 


$ 
Total 


$ 
[List by class]  -  -  - -  -  -  
Total  - -  - -  -  -  
Contractual maturities for financial liabilities 2013 - Parent 
 


On 
Demand 


< 1 year 
$ 


1– 2 
years 


$ 


2– 5 
years 


$ 
>5 years 


$ 
Total 


$ 
[List by class]  -  -  - -  -  -  
Total  - -  - -  -  -  
Maturities for financial liabilities 2012 - Parent 
 


On 
Demand 


< 1 year 
$ 


1– 2 years 
$ 


2– 5 
years 


$ 
>5 years 


$ 
Total 


$ 
[List by class]  -  -  - -  -  -  
Total  - -  - -  -  -  
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Note 15G: Market Risk 
 
[Market risks generally include interest rate risk, price risk, and currency risk—insert discussion 
market risks which the entity is exposed to]  
Interest rate risk 
 
[Method and assumptions used for sensitivity analysis for 2013 and 2012, where the method 
changes between years disclose reasons why] (delete risk if not appropriate) 
Sensitivity analysis of the risk that the entity is exposed to for 2013 
 
 Change in 


risk 
variable % 


Effect on 
 Risk 


variable 
Profit and 


loss 
Equity 


  $ $ 
Interest rate risk - [+ Rate] - - 
Interest rate risk - [- Rate] - - 
 
Sensitivity analysis of the risk that the entity is exposed to for 2012 
 
 Change in 


risk 
variable % 


Effect on 
 Risk 


variable 
Profit and 


loss 
Equity 


  $ $ 
Interest rate risk - [+ Rate] - - 
Interest rate risk - [- Rate] - - 
[Where the sensitivity analysis is not representative of the risk inherent in a financial instrument—
an entity discloses this fact and the reasons why] 
 
Price risk 
[insert discussion on price risk] 
[Method and assumptions used for sensitivity analysis for 2013 and 2012, where the method 
changes between years disclose reasons why] (delete risk if not appropriate) 
 
Sensitivity analysis of the risk that the entity is exposed to for 2013 
 
 Change in 


risk 
variable % 


Effect on 
 Risk 


variable 
Profit and 


loss 
Equity 


  $ $ 
Other price risk - [+ Rate] - - 
Other price risk - [- Rate] - - 
 
Sensitivity analysis of the risk that the entity is exposed to for 2012 
 
 Change in 


risk 
variable % 


Effect on 
 Risk 


variable 
Profit and 


loss 
Equity 


  $ $ 
Other price risk - [+ Rate] - - 
Other price risk - [- Rate] - - 
[Where the sensitivity analysis is not representative of the risk inherent in a financial instrument—
an entity discloses this fact and the reasons why] 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Note 15H: Asset Pledged/or Held as Collateral 
 
Assets pledged as collateral 
Financial assets pledged as collateral: 
[List]  -  - - - 
Total assets pledged as collateral  -  - - - 
[terms and conditions related to pledge] 
Assets held as collateral 
Fair value of assets held as collateral: 
Financial assets  -  - - - 
Non-financial assets  -  - - - 
Total assets held as collateral  -  - - - 
[Terms and conditions of collateral held] 
[Fair value of collateral sold or re-pledged, and whether the entity has an obligation to return it] 
[Terms and conditions of collateral held] 
[Fair value of collateral sold or re-pledged, and whether the entity has an obligation to return it] 
 
Note 16 Business combinations 
Subsidiaries acquired 
 
    
Name of entity Principal 


activity 
Date of 


acquisition 
Proportion 


of shares 
acquired 


% 


Consideration 
transferred 


2013:     
[list ] - - - - 
     


2012:     
[list] - - - - 


 
Consideration transferred 
 
2013: [Entity] [Entity] 


   
Cash - - 
Transfer of land & buildings at fair value at date of acquisition - - 
Total - - 
 
2012: [Entity] [Entity] 


   
Cash - - 
Transfer of land & buildings at fair value at date of acquisition - - 
Total - - 
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Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition 
 
 [Entity] [Entity] Total 
2013:    
Current assets    
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 
Trade and other receivables - - - 
Inventories - - - 
Non-current assets    
Plant and equipment - - - 
Current liabilities     
Trade and other payables - - - 
Non-current liabilities   - 
Deferred tax liabilities - - - 
Contingent liabilities - - - 
 - - - 
 
 [Entity] [Entity] Total 
2012:    
Current assets    
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 
Trade and other receivables - - - 
Inventories - - - 
Non-current assets    
Plant and equipment - - - 
Current liabilities     
Trade and other payables - - - 
Non-current liabilities    
Deferred tax liabilities - - - 
Contingent liabilities - - - 
 - - - 
 
Goodwill arising on acquisition 
 
 [Entity] [Entity] Total 
2013:    
Consideration transferred    
Less: fair value of identifiable net assets acquired - - - 
Goodwill arising on acquisition - - - 
 
 [Entity] [Entity] Total 
2012:    
Consideration transferred    
Less: fair value of identifiable net assets acquired - - - 
Goodwill arising on acquisition - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 
 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 
 


Note 17 Administration of financial affairs by a third party6 
 


Name of entity providing service:  
Terms and conditions:  
Nature of expenses/consultancy service:  
 


Detailed breakdown of revenues collected and/or expenses incurred 
 


 Revenue     
 Membership subscription - - - - 
 Capitation fees - - - - 
 Levies - - - - 
 Interest - - - - 
 Rental revenue - - - - 
 Other revenue - - - - 
 Grants and/or donations - - - - 
 Total revenue  - - - - 
      
 Expenses     
 Employee expense - - - - 
 Capitation fees - - - - 
 Affiliation fees - - - - 


 Consideration to employers for payroll 
deductions - - - - 


 Compulsory levies - - - - 


 Fees/allowances - meeting and 
conferences - - - - 


 Conference and meeting expenses - - - - 
 Administration expenses - - - - 
 Grants or donations - - - - 
 Finance costs - - - - 
 Legal costs - - - - 
 Audit fees - - - - 


 Penalties - via RO Act or RO 
Regulations - - - - 


 Other expenses - - - - 
 Total expenses - - - - 
      


 
  


                                                
6  Refer to item 34 in the Reporting Guidelines. 
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Note 18 Section 272 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 
 
In accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the 
attention of members is drawn to the provisions of subsections (1) to (3) of section 272, which 
reads as follows: 
 
Information to be provided to members or the General Manager of Fair Work Australia: 
 


(1) A member of a reporting unit, or the General Manager of Fair Work Australia, may 
apply to the reporting unit for specified prescribed information in relation to the 
reporting unit to be made available to the person making the application. 


 
(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the 


manner in which, the information is to be made available. The period must not be less 
than 14 days after the application is given to the reporting unit. 


 
(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1). 
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From: KELLETT, Stephen
To: KELLETT, Stephen
Subject: FW: omissions in financial report and/or departures from previous years
Date: Tuesday, 10 September 2013 1:45:50 PM

From: Donald Garton [mailto:donaldg@etunsw.asn.au] 
Sent: Tuesday, 10 September 2013 1:42 PM
To: KELLETT, Stephen
Subject: RE: omissions in financial report and/or departures from previous years
 
Hi Stephen
 
Thank you for your email.  As requested, we will submit:

1.       a “supplementary statement of disclosure” that addresses all the items in your email
below with referencing back to the previously lodged reports.

2.      a covering statement from our auditor
3.       a letter from the Secretary advising that the

a.      supplementary statement of disclosure and
b.      a covering statement from our auditor

have been placed on our web site for members access.
 
And we will incorporate the supplementary statement of disclosure into our future reporting.
 
Thanks Stephen.
 
Regards
 
Donald Garton
Join the ETU NSW online, click here
-------------------------------------------------------------
Financial Controller
Electrical Trades Union of Australia (NSW Branch)
CEPU , Electrical Trades Union Division, NSW Branch
Level 5, 370 Pitt St, Sydney 2000, NSW, Australia
P: (02) 9267 4844   F: (02) 9267 4877  M: 0419 855 622
E: DonaldG@etunsw.asn.au W: www.etunsw.com.au
 

    

Please consider the environment before printing this email.
 

Attention:
The information contained in this message and or attachments is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed
and may contain confidential and/or privileged material.  Any review, retransmission, dissemination or other use of, or taking of

mailto:/O=AIR/OU=NSW01/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=KELLET
mailto:Stephen.KELLETT@fwc.gov.au
http://www.etunsw.asn.au/ETUMembers/join-us
mailto:DonaldG@etunsw.asn.au
http://www.etunsw.com.au/
https://twitter.com/NSWPowerSellOff
http://www.facebook.com/pages/Stop-the-Sell-Off/383490491758035
https://vimeo.com/user17399695
http://stoptheselloff.org.au/


From: KELLETT, Stephen
To: "donaldg@etunsw.asn.au"
Subject: omissions in financial report and/or departures from previous years
Date: Tuesday, 10 September 2013 1:00:00 PM

Dear Donald,
 
Further to our discussion on Friday, 6 September 2013, I have examined the report for the year ended 31 December 2012
and have identified the following balance categories that do not appear to have been separately disclosed in accordance
with the Reporting Guidelines [RGs] applicable for the year.  They include:
 

1.       Sustentation or “contribution towards the administrative expenses of (another) reporting unit, including the amount
and name of that reporting unit” [see RG 11(b)]

 
2.       Fees for “affiliation to any political party, any federation..........having an interest in industrial matters” [see RG 11(d)]

 
3.       Amounts  “transferred to a fund or account kept for a specific purpose by the reporting unit” or an amount

“withdrawn from such a fund or account” including the name of the fund or account [see RG 12(a)]
 

4.       The name of the other reporting unit “where an item is disclosed as a receivable or payable......as a result of one or
more transactions and or other past events with another reporting unit of the organisation”. [see RG 13]

 
5.       “The name and balance of each fund or account operated.....required by the rules of the organisation” [see RG

14(g)]  
 

[NB - Note 2 lists cash and cash equivalent investment balances for three funds described in abbreviated form but
does not list comparative 2011 figures for them, raising a question whether this guideline has been satisfied].

 
6.       The separate disclosure of the name of the other reporting unit  concerned where it “is the source of a cash inflow

or the application of a cash outflow” [see RG 15]
 
In addition, I have identified the following balance categories that do not appear to have been separately disclosed in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standard (AASB) 1054:
 

7.       “fees to each auditor........separately for (a) the audit ..... of the financial statements; and (b) all other services
performed during the reporting period ............(and) shall describe the nature of other services”

 
[NB – I note that in the Operating Report it is reported that a service agreement was entered into with the ETU NSW
during the year.  I am unsure whether this is connected with the omission of an audit expense disclosure]

______________________________________________________________________________________________
 
By comparison, in the financial report for the year ended 31 Dec 2011:
 

·        item 1 was disclosed as “Sustentation fees” and “National Council Funding” at Note 6 “National Council costs” on
page 10. [ NB. The name “National Council” was taken at that time to stand for the name of the Division, rather than
the National Office, but if this was incorrect, then any ambiguity should be clarified in future reports]

 
·        item 2 was disclosed as “Affiliation fees” in the Statement of Comprehensive income on page 7. [NB. It was clear

from the figure that this did not incorporate sustentation and other categories]
 

·        item 3 was disclosed in separate financial statements for each of the three funds on pages 14-19.
 

·        Item 4 receivables by name (incl. the related party of the ETUNSW) were disclosed at Notes 8 and 9 on page 11;  
item 4 payables were disclosed by aggregate amount but not by name at Note 11 on page 11.

 
·        Item 5 appears to have been disclosed at Note 7 on page 10 and in the financial statements for the three funds on

pages 14-19.
 

·        Item 6 appears to be covered by the disclosure at Note 6 [see above]
 

·        Item 7 was taken to have been disclosed as “Auditor’s remuneration” at Note 3 on page 10.   [NB.  For 2012, for the
purposes of AASB 1054, this would have had to be either described more precisely as “audit fees” or else, where it

mailto:donaldg@etunsw.asn.au


included fees for other services, broken up into the two separate sub-categories]
______________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
The presentation of these categories in the 2012 report differs from that of previous years’ reports.  At face value, it appears
to me these reporting guidelines have not been met but in case I have overlooked any relevant information, I would invite
the Branch’s comments and advice on the matter.    The service agreement with the state-registered union may be relevant
and if so, an explanation of what it covers in greater detail would assist.  If the Branch agrees that there have been omissions
in some or all of the above categories,  I think  a supplementary summary of the relevant disclosures  added to the already
published financial statements would serve to complete the disclosure requirements for the benefit of members.   
 
Please don’t hesitate to telephone me to discuss.
 
Yours sincerely
 
 
 
 
STEPHEN KELLETT
Regulatory Compliance Branch
FAIR WORK COMMISSION
 
80 William Street
EAST SYDNEY   NSW   2011
 
(ph) (02) 6723 7237
(email) stephen.kellett@fwc.gov.au
 

mailto:stephen.kellett@fwc.gov.au
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I Steve Butler being the Secretary in accordance with the rules of the C.E.P.U. 
Electrical Division NSW certify: 

• that the document lodged on 21st June 2013 is a copy of 
the full report referred to in s.268 of the RO Act for the C.E.P.U. Electrical 
Division NSW for the period ended 31st December 2012; and 

• that the full report was presented to a meeting of the committee of 
management of the reporting unit on 17th Jun 2013 in accordance with 
s.266 of the RO Act. 

• that the full report was provided to members of the reporting unit on 
18th June 2013 in accordance with s.265 of the RO Act; 

• the full report submitted on 21st June 2013 was then altered on page 13 
"Note 10" to reflect the correct listing of Executive Committee Members 
of the Union. 

• the full report was again presented to a meeting of the committee of 
management of the reporting unit on gth July 2013 in accordance with 
s.266 of the RO Act. 
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C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 
ABN 46 878 660 276 

Organisation Statements 

Operating Report 

The committee of management in accordance with section 254 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 and 
Regulation 159 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Regulations 2009 presents its report for the period ended 31st 
December 2012. 

Review of principal actiyities. the results of those activities and any significant changes in the nature of those 
activities during the year 

The principal activity of the NSW Branch of the CEPU Electrical Division was that of a registered Trade Union. 
There has been no significant changes to the way the Union has carried out these activities during the last financial year. 

The operating surplus for CEPU Electrical Division NSW Branch the year ended 31st December 2012 was $139,443. 

There have been no significant changes to the operating costs of the Branch in the last financial year. 

Right of members 

Members have the right to resign their membership of the union by giving written notice of resignation to the Branch 
Secretary. The written notification is accepted subject to the rules of the branch and in accordance with section 174 of the 
Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

Number of members 

As at 31 December 2012 the organisation had 21,978 members. The number of financial members of the Union as at 31 
December 2012 was 13.569. 

Service Agreement 

During the year the C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) entered into a service agreement with the Electrical Trades 
Union of Australia (NSW Branch) under which the C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) receives administrative 
support services and facilities from the Electrical Trades Union of Australia (NSW Branch). 

Names of all Committee of Management members who held office during the year and the period which each such 
person held office during the year 

Name 
James MacFadyen 
Bernard Riordan 
Steve Butler 
William Maxwell 
Mary Stylli 
Philip Oswald 
Glen Potter 
Peter Henne 
Mark Buttigieg 
Colin Harris 
Neville Betts 

Date 

Period of service 
1 Jan 2012 to 
1 Jan 2012 to 
26 Mar 2012 to 
1 Jan 2012 to 
1 Jan 2012 to 
1 Jan 2012 to 
1 Jan 2012 to 
1 Jan 2012 to 
1 Jan 2012 to 
1 Jan 2012 to 
1 Jan 2012 to 

31 Dec2012 
25 Mar 2012 
31 Dec 2012 
31 Dec 2012 
31 Dec 2012 
31 Dec 2012 
31 Dec 2012 
31 Dec 2012 
31 Dec 2012 
31 Dec 2012 
31 Dec 2012 

Signature of designated officer 

Name of designated officer 

Office held 

The accompanying notes form part of tnese financial statements. 



C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 
ABN 46 878 660 276 

Organisation Statements 

Committee of Management Statement 

On the _j_J_£_ day of <1"\Jrlt" in the year .2ol$ the committee of management of the CEPU Electrical Division 
NSW Branch (the reporting unit) passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial report (GPFR) 
for the period ended 31 December 2012. 

The committee of management declares that in its opinion: 

(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards; 

(b) the financial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelines of the General Manager of the Fair Work 
Commission; 

(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, financial position and cash 
flows of the reporting unit for the financial year to which they relate; 

(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its debts as and when they 
become due and payable; and 

(e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year: 

(i) meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of the organisation 
including the rules of a branch concerned; and 

(ii) the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the rules of the 
organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and 

(iii) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in accordance with the RO Act ; 
and 

(iv) [where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units], the financial records of the reporting unit 
have been kept, as far as practicable, in a consistent manner to each of the other reporting units of the 
organisation; and 

(v) information has been furnished to any member of the reporting unit or to the General Manager of the Fair 
Work Commission, as the case may be, where information sought by the member or the General Manager 
of the Fair Work Commission was duly made under section 272 of the RO Act; and 

(vi) there has been compliance with any order for inspection of financial records made by the Fair Work 
Commission under section 273 of the RO Act. 

(f) the reporting unit has not engaged in recovery of wages activity which has resulted in the derivation of 
revenue in respect of such activity. 

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management. 

Name of designated officer 

Signature of designated officer 

Name of designated officer 

Signature of designated officer 
7 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 
A BN 46 878 660 276 

Organisation Statements 

Committee of Management Statement 

On the <§ day of 'S.J U l':/ in the year 2f:) 13 the committee of management of the CEPU Electrical Division 
NSW Branch (the reporting unit) passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial report (GPFR) 
for the period ended 31 December 2012. 

The committee of management declares that in its opinion: 

(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards; 

(b) the financial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelines of the General Manager of the Fair Work 
Commission; 

(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, financial position and cash 
flows of the reporting unit for the financial year to which they relate; 

(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its debts as and when they 
become due and payable; and 

(e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year: 

(i) meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of the organisation 
including the rules of a branch concerned; and 

(ii) the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the rules of the 
organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and 

(iii) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in accordance with the RO Act : 
and 

(iv) [where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units], the financial records of the reporting unit 
have been kept, as far as practicable, in a consistent manner to each of the other reporting units of the 
organisation; and 

(v) information has been furnished to any member of the reporting unit or to the General Manager of the Fair 
Work Commission, as the case may be, where information sought by the member or the General Manager 
of the Fair Work Commission was duly made under section 272 of the RO Act; and 

(vi) there has been compliance with any order for inspection of financial records made by the Fair Work 
Commission under section 273 of the RO Act. 

(f) the reporting unit has not engaged in recovery of wages activity which has resulted in the derivation of 
revenue in respect of such activity. 

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management. 

Name of designated officer d ames . f'v? . M ACFA D '-1 E:.J.J 

Signature of designated officer , ·: c-(..7~ ' 

Name of designated officer 

Signature of designated officer 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 
UN 41 m MO 27f 

Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the 
Corporations Act 2001 to the Directors of C.E.P.U. Electrical Division 
(NSW Branch) 

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 31 December 2012, there have been: 

(i) no contraventions of the 111.1ditor Independence requirements as set out in the C0ip01'8tions Act 2001 In relation to 
the audit; and 

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct In relation to the audit. 

Pinker Arnold & Mcloughlin Chartered Accountants 

Richard Pinker 

Date: _/Z.. /v,·- f'd 

Hurstville NSW 

3 



C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 
ABN 46 878 660 276 

Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the 
Corporations Act 2001 to the Directors of C.E.P.U. Electrical Division 
(NSW Branch) 

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 31 December 2012, there have been: 

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to 
the audit; and 

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

Pinker Arnold & Mel o••ghlin Chartered Acco•JOtant 

Richard Pinker 

Date: <f' ~.o/ o/RJt.f 

Hurstville NSW 
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C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 
ABN 46 878 660 276 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2012 

Revenue 
Other income 

Affiliation fees 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

ETU admin & mgt fees 
Finance costs 

Grants & donations 

Legal fees 
Meeting & conference fees 

Other expenses 

Profit before income tax 
Income tax expense 

Profit from continuing operations 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income: 

Total comprehensive income for the 
. year 

Note 

7 

7 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

2012 2011 

$ $ 
4,428,383 1,800,705 

22,319 34,464 
(1 ,338,072) (819,860) 

(48,181) (48,148) 

(2,374,879) 

(180,904) (180,895) 

(87,491) (25,000) 

5,115 (237,764) 
(35,298) (52,530) 

(251,549) (223,609) 

139,443 247,363 
--· 

1391443 247,363 

139,443 247,363 

1391443 247,363 

4 



C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 
ABN 46 878 660 276 

Statement of Financial Position 
As At 31 December 2012 

2012 2011 

Note $ $ 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 2 4,250,499 1,406,665 

Trade and other receivables 3 634,778 2,456,138 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 418851277 318621803 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Trade and other receivables 1,300,000 1,300,000 

Property, plant and equipment 4 6,748,481 6,796,297 

TpTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 810481481 81096,297 

TOTAL ASSETS 121933.758 11.959,100 

LIABILITIES 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade and other payables 5 856,178 362,399 

Current tax liabilities 82,126 587 

Short-term provisions 200,000 . 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 9381304 562,986 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade and other payables 5 1,573,000 1,573,000 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 115731000 115731000 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 215111304 21135,986 

NET ASSETS 10.422,454 9,823,114 

EQUITY 
Reserves 3,574,308 3,574,308 

Accumulated surplus at the end of 
the financial year 6,848,146 6,248,806 

1014221454 9,8231114 

TOTAL EQUITY 1014221454 918231114 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
5 
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C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 
ABN 46 878 660 276 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2012 

2012 

Note 

Balance at 1 January 2012 

Surplus attributable to members 
Retrospective adjustment upon change in 
accounting policy 

Sub-total 

Balance at 31 December 2012 

2011 

Note 

Balance at 1 January 2011 

Surplus attributable to members 

Sub-total 

Balance at 31 December 2011 

Accumulated 
Surplus 

$ 

6,248,806 
139,443 

459,897 

599.340 

61848.146 

Accumulated 
Surplus 

$ 

6,001,443 
247,363 

247.363 

61248.806 

Asset 
Revaluation 

Reserve 
$ 

3,574,308 

31574.308 

Asset 
Revaluation 

Reserve 

$ 

3,574,308 

3.574.308 

Total 

$ 

9,823,114 
139,443 

459,897 

599.340 

1014221454 

Total 

$ 

9 ,575,751 
247,363 

247.363 

9 ,823.114 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statem nts. 
6 



The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 
ABN 46 878 660 276 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2012 

The financial statements cover C.EP.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) as an individual entity. C.EP.U. Electrical 
Division (NSW Branch) is registered trade union domiciled in Australia. 

1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis of preparation 

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with 
the Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations and the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009. 

Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented below and 
have been consistent! a lied unless otherwise stated. 

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, 
where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and 
financial liabilities. 

(b) Comparative figures 

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated. 

(c) Property, plant and equipment 

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value as indicated less, where applicable, 
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses . 

Plant and equipment 

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis less depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes 
expenditure that i~ directly attributable to the asset. 

Depreciation 

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including buildings and capitalised leased assets, is depreciated on 
a reducing balance basis over the asset's useful life commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. 
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the 
estimated useful lives of the improvements. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount 
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains 
and losses are included in the statement of comprehensive income. 

(d) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid 
investments with original maturities ofthree months or less which are convertible to a known amount of cash 
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within 
short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial position. 

8 
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C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 
ABN 46 878 660 276 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2012 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued 

(e) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Union has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for 
which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured. 

Provisions recognised represent the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of 
the reporting period. 

(f) Trade and other payables 

--------J.T.r;;ra~Gd~ee-eamno.d -Gotmh~eeri'-J)payables-represellt-the4iability..outstanding at the end of the-repoltitlg.pedi'-"Odl.l-4'.fo"-r-!.I'QOUIOAd.~>S-<=~a~ndu..------­
services received by the Union during the reporting period which remain unpaid. The balance is recognised as 
a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability. 

(g) Income tax 

The Union is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

(h) Revenue and other Income 

The Union recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future 
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of C.E.P.U. Electrical 
Division (NSW Branch)'s activities as discussed below. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after taking into account any 
trade discounts and volume rebates allowed. Any consideration deferred is treated as the provision of finance 
and is discounted at a rate of interest that is generally accepted in the market for similar arrangements. The 
difference between the amount initially recognised and the amount ultimately received is interest revenue. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 

(i) · Goods and services tax (GST) 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST 
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recog.nised as 
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the 
statement of financial position are shown inclusive of GST. 

Cash flows are presented in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis, except for the GST component of 
investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows. 

2 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
2012 2011 

Note $ $ 
Bank balances 834,161 37,074 
Investments 
Investments - D&M fund 
Investments - Sus Asst fund 
Investments - D&M supp fund 

1,445,767 
396,878 

1,467,922 
106,771 

1,369,591 

9 
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C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 
ABN 46 878 660 278 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2012 

2 Cash and Cash Equivalents continued 

Reconciliation of cash 

Note 

2012 2011 

$ $ 

4,250,499 1,406,665 

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is reconciled to items in the statement of 
financial position as follows: 

2012 2011 

Note $ $ 
Gash aAa eash eq~ivaleAts 4,259;499 1,406,665 

3 Trade and Other Receivables 
2012 2011 

Note $ $ 

CURRENT 
Related party receivables 602,439 2,382,929 
Other receivables 32,339 73,209 

Total current trade and other 
receivables 634,778 2,456,138 

4 Property, Plant and Equipment 

2012 2011 

$ $ 

LAND AND BUILDINGS 

Building 

At independent valuation 6,940,741 6,940,741 
Accumulated depreciation (192,593) (144,444) 

Total buildings 6.748.148 6,796,297 

Total land and buildings 61748.148 6,796,297 

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Office equipment 
At cost 366 
Accumulated depreciation (33) 

Total office equipment 333 

Total plant and equipment 333 

Total property, plant and 
equipment 6z748.481 6,796,297 

10 
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C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 
ABN 48 878 660 276 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2012 

5 Trade and Other Payables 

CURRENT 

Secured Liabilities 
Creditors & accruals 

Other payables 

NON-CURRENT 
ETU of Aust NSW 

6 Financial Risk Management 

Note 

2012 
$ 

856,178 

856,178 

856,178 

2012 

1,573,000 

2011 
$ 

18,427 

343,972 

362,399 

362,399 

2011 

1,573,000 

The Union's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, local term deposits, accounts receivable & 
payable. 

This note discloses the Union's objectives, policies and processes for managing and measuring these risks. 

The Union's overall risk management plan seeks to minimise potential adverse effects due to the unpredictability of 
financial markets. 

The Union does not speculate in financial assets. 

The most significant financial risks to which the Union is exposed to are described below: 

• Market risk - currency risk. cash flow interest rate risk and price risk 

• Credit risk 

• Liquidity risk 

The Union's committee is responsible for, among other things, monitoring and managing financial risk exposure. The 
secretary monitors the Union's transactions and authroises any changes in financial risk management. 

The principal categories of financial instrument used by the Union are: 

• Trade receivables 

• Cash at bank 

• Trade and other payables 

Net fair values 

11 



C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 
ABN 48 878 660 276 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2012 

6 Financial Risk Management continued 

Fair value estimation 

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their carrying value, because of their short 
term to maturity. No financial assets or financial liabilities are actively traded on organised markets. 

7 

8 

Revenue and Other Income 

2012 2011 

Note $ $ 

Revenue 
- Member subscriptions 3,760,201 
- Rental revenue 352,800 352,800 

- Interest received 315,382 170,313 

- Service charges 1,277,592 

414281383 1,800,705 

Other income 
- Gain (loss) on investments 22,319 31,329 

- Other income 3,135 

22,319 34,464 

Total Revenue 4,4501702 1,835,169 

Events after the end of the Reporting Period 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 6 June 2013. 

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may 
significantly affect the operations of the Union, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Union in 
future financial years. 

9 Union Details 

Registered office and principal place of business: 

C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 

Level 5, 370 Pitt St 

Sydney NSW 2000 

12 
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C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 
ABN 46 878 660 276 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2012 

10 Related Party Transactions 

Executive committee members 

Executive committee members for the income year ended 31 Dec 2012 were: 

Jim MacFadyen (President); Bernie Riordan (Secretary 01/01/12 to 25/03/12); Steve Butler (Secretary 26/03/12 to 
31/12/12); William Maxwell (Vice President); Neville Betts (Assistant Secretary); Philip Oswald (Treasurer); Glen 
Potter; Peter Henne; Colin Harris; Mark Buttigieg; Mary Stylli. 

11 Notice to Memb 

Notice to Members under section 272 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009: 

(1) A member of a reporting unit, or the General Manager, may apply to the reporting unit for specified 
prescribed information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the person making 
the application 

.(2) " The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the manner in 
which, the information is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 days after the 
application is given to the reporting unit 

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1). 

12 Contributions collected by the ETU (NSW) 

All money collected by the Electrical Trades Union of Australia (NSW Branch) for members' contributions. 
subscriptions, fines, levies. fees or dues owing are also held to be contributions, subscriptions, fines, levies, fees or 
dues collected on behalf of the CEPU Electrical Division NSW Branch). 
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C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 
ABN 46 878 660 276 

Independent Audit Report to the members of C.E.P.U. Electrical Division 
(NSW Branch) 

Report on the Financial Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial report of C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch), which comprises the 
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in 
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information, and management's assertion statement. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Report 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards and the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to 
audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is 
free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
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C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 
A8N "'171 ... 2711 

Independent Audit Report to the members of C.E.P .U. Electrical Division 
(NSW Branch) 

Opinion 

In our opinion the financial report of C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) Is in accordance with the Fair Work 
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009, including : 

{a) presenting fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of C.E.P .U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) as at 31 
December 2012, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended: and 

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and any other requirements imposed by Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the 
Fair Worlc (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

Pinker Arnold & Mcloughlin Chartered Accountants 

Richard Pinker 
Chartered Accountant & Registered Company Auditor 

Hurstville NSW 
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C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 
ABN 46 876 660 276 

Independent Audit Report to the members of C.E.P.U. Electrical Division 
(NSW Branch) 

Report on the Financial Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial report of C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch), which comprises the 
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in 
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information, and management's assertion statement. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Reporl 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards and the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to 
audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is 
free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

14 



C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) 
ABN 48 878 880 278 

Independent Audit Report to the members of C.E.P.U. Electrical Division 
(NSW Branch) 

Opinion 

In our opinion the financial report of C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) is in accordance with the Fair Worl< 
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009, including : 

(a) presenting fairly, in all material respects,. the financial position of C.E.P.U. Electrical Division (NSW Branch) as at 31 
December 2012, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended; and 

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and any other requirements imposed by Part 3 of Chapter B of the 
Fair Worl< (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

Pinker Arnold & Mcloughlin Chartered Accountants 

Richard Pinker 
Chartered Accountant & Registered Company Auditor 

Hurstville NSW 

Date: ~ :fr!J' c4J6i 
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 11 Exhibition Street 
Melbourne VIC 3000 

GPO Box 1994 
Melbourne VIC 3001 

Telephone: (03) 8661 7777 
International: (613) 8661 7777 

Facsimile: (03) 9655 0401 
Email: melbourne@fwc.gov.au 

 

22 June 2013 

  

Mr Paul Sinclair 
Deputy Secretary, New South Wales Electrical Divisional Branch 
CEPU  
Level 5, 370 Pitt Street 
SYDNEY  NSW  2000 

Dear Mr Sinclair, 

Re: Application for extension of time - s265(5) Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 
2009 - CEPU, Electrical, Energy and Services Division, New South Wales Divisional 
Branch - for year ended 31 December 2012 (FR2012/529) 

I refer to your letter of application for an extension of time of one month to provide copies of the 
full report to members under subsection 265(5) of the Act, which was received on 18 June 2013. 

I note the Branch’s intention to present, in accordance with its rules, the full report to a second 
meeting of the committee of management after providing time for comment, and the 
circumstances you have advised preventing the Branch from providing copies within the 5 
months prescribed by paragraph 265(5)(b).    

I also note that 18 June 2013 was, at the date of the application, the proposed date for provision 
of the report to the members. 

I also note that 8 July 2013 is the proposed date for presentation of the report to a second 
meeting of the committee of management.    

I should point out that a careful reading of subsection 265(5) means that though an extension of 
time to provide a report to members will automatically mean an extension of time to present the 
report to a general meeting of members due to the requirement of a 21 day period, an extension 
of time to provide the report to members does not necessarily represent an extension of time to 
present the report to a meeting of the committee of management.   The 21 day period required by 
paragraph 265(5)(a) to elapse between providing a report to members and holding a general 
meeting of members is not required to elapse prior to holding a second meeting of the committee 
of management.     This means that, practical arrangements aside, there may be nothing to 
prevent the Branch from presenting the report to its committee on or before 30 June 2013 and 
thus comply with the ordinary timeframe prescribed by subsection 266(1).  

The Branch should keep this in mind in the event of any circumstances in the future where it 
considers it necessary to apply for an extension of time in relation to either or both of these key 
financial reporting events.  

I accept the Branch’s advice and have taken into account the provisional dates already 
scheduled in Annexure A.  I consider that I may, pursuant to subsection 265(5), extend the period 
in which copies of the report may be provided to members and the period during which the  



 

 

meeting referred to in paragraph 265(5)(a) may be held, by no more than one month, and I grant 
the extension requested.    

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

Chris Enright 
Delegate of the General Manager 
Fair Work Commission 
 



From: KELLETT, Stephen
To: Aaron Mckinnon
Subject: Grant of extension of time
Date: Monday, 24 June 2013 8:57:00 AM
Attachments: CEPU ELE NSW FR2012 529 (s265(5) extension) 220613.pdf

Dear Aaron,
 
Please see attached the Delegate’s grant of extension requested.
 
Yours sincerely
 
 
STEPHEN KELLETT
Regulatory Compliance Branch
FAIR WORK COMMISSION
 
80 William Street
EAST SYDNEY   NSW   2011
 
(ph) (02) 6723 7237
(email) stephen.kellett@fwc.gov.au
 

mailto:/O=AIR/OU=NSW01/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=KELLET
mailto:aaronm@etunsw.asn.au



 


 11 Exhibition Street 
Melbourne VIC 3000 


GPO Box 1994 
Melbourne VIC 3001 


Telephone: (03) 8661 7777 
International: (613) 8661 7777 


Facsimile: (03) 9655 0401 
Email: melbourne@fwc.gov.au 


 


22 June 2013 


  


Mr Paul Sinclair 
Deputy Secretary, New South Wales Electrical Divisional Branch 
CEPU  
Level 5, 370 Pitt Street 
SYDNEY  NSW  2000 


Dear Mr Sinclair, 


Re: Application for extension of time - s265(5) Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 
2009 - CEPU, Electrical, Energy and Services Division, New South Wales Divisional 
Branch - for year ended 31 December 2012 (FR2012/529) 


I refer to your letter of application for an extension of time of one month to provide copies of the 
full report to members under subsection 265(5) of the Act, which was received on 18 June 2013. 


I note the Branch’s intention to present, in accordance with its rules, the full report to a second 
meeting of the committee of management after providing time for comment, and the 
circumstances you have advised preventing the Branch from providing copies within the 5 
months prescribed by paragraph 265(5)(b).    


I also note that 18 June 2013 was, at the date of the application, the proposed date for provision 
of the report to the members. 


I also note that 8 July 2013 is the proposed date for presentation of the report to a second 
meeting of the committee of management.    


I should point out that a careful reading of subsection 265(5) means that though an extension of 
time to provide a report to members will automatically mean an extension of time to present the 
report to a general meeting of members due to the requirement of a 21 day period, an extension 
of time to provide the report to members does not necessarily represent an extension of time to 
present the report to a meeting of the committee of management.   The 21 day period required by 
paragraph 265(5)(a) to elapse between providing a report to members and holding a general 
meeting of members is not required to elapse prior to holding a second meeting of the committee 
of management.     This means that, practical arrangements aside, there may be nothing to 
prevent the Branch from presenting the report to its committee on or before 30 June 2013 and 
thus comply with the ordinary timeframe prescribed by subsection 266(1).  


The Branch should keep this in mind in the event of any circumstances in the future where it 
considers it necessary to apply for an extension of time in relation to either or both of these key 
financial reporting events.  


I accept the Branch’s advice and have taken into account the provisional dates already 
scheduled in Annexure A.  I consider that I may, pursuant to subsection 265(5), extend the period 
in which copies of the report may be provided to members and the period during which the  







 


 


meeting referred to in paragraph 265(5)(a) may be held, by no more than one month, and I grant 
the extension requested.    


 


Yours sincerely 


 


 


Chris Enright 
Delegate of the General Manager 
Fair Work Commission 
 







EIU ELECTRICAL TRADES UNION OF AUSTRALIA, NSW BRANCH 
www.etunsw.com.au 

POWER IN UNITY 

1902- 2002 
100 Years of 

Lighting the Way 

The General Manager 
Fair Work Commission 
80 William Street 
East Sydney NSW 2011 

Dear Ms O'Neill, 

SECRETARY: Steve Butler 

18 June 2013 

RE: Application for extension of time under s265 of the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009 

I write to you on behalf of the NSW Divisional Branch of the Electrical, Electronic and 
Services Division of the Communications, Electrical, Electronic, Energy, Information, Postal, 
Plumbing and Allied Services Union of Australia (the "Union") in relation to Chapter 8, Part 3 
Division 5 of the Fair Work {Registered Organisations) Act 2009 ("the Act") and the 
requirement under section 265(1) for the reporting unit to provide copies of a full report to 
members free of charge. 

It is not the intention for the Union to provide a copy to members at a general meeting as 
identified ins. 265(5)a) but instead to provide it under the provisions of s. 265(5)b) and in 
accordance with the Rules of the Union, via the Union's webpage. 

It has now become apparent to the Union that due to new financial management of the 
Union and alterations to the processes utilised by the accountants, the Union has not been 
able to provide the reports to members within the 5 month period starting at the end of the 
financial year. 

Accordingly, under the provisions of s265(5) the Union makes application for an extension 
of time of one month, in order to provide members with access to the full report and to 
provide time for comment before providing the report to the Committee of Management 
under s. 266(3) of the Act. 

Level 5, 370 Pitt St 
Sydney NSW 2000 
Phone: 9267 4844 
Fax: 9267 4877 

26 Warabrook Bvd 
Warabrook NSW 2304 
Phone: 4968 2488 
Fax: 4968 3466 

Level 2, 63 Market St 
Wollongong NSW 2500 
Phone: 4229 8711 
Fax: 4228 5636 

25-27 Darling St 
PO Box 126 
Mitchell ACT 2911 
Phone: 6163 6666 
Fax: 6163 6667 

ABN: 24 379 005 569 Email: etunsw@etunsw.com.au 

COMMUNICATIONS 
ELECTRICAL 
PLUMBING 
UNION 
NSW ELECTRICAL 
DIVISIONAL BRANCH 



For clarity, as "Annexure A" to this correspondence I have provided a copy of the expected 
timeline for review and intent to lodge the reports, within the time frame of 6 months and 
14 days as provided for in s. 268 of the Act. 

Should you require any further information on this application, please do not hesitate to 
contact me on 02 9267 4844. 

Yours faithfully, 

Paul Sinclair 
Deputy Secretary 



ANNEXURE A 

Event 

Prepare financial statements and Operating 
Report. 

A Committee of Management Meeting must 
consider the financial statements, and if 
satisfied, pass a resolution declaring the 
various matters required to be included in 
the Committee of Management Statement. 

s. 257 Powers and duties of auditors 
Auditor's Report prepared and signed and 
given to the Reporting Unit. 

s.265 Provide full report free of charge to 
members. 
The full report includes: 
• the General Purpose Financial 
Report (which includes the Committee of 
Management Statement); 
• the Auditor's Report; and 
• the Operating Report. 

s.266 Full report to be presented to 
meetings 
(3) Present full report to a meeting of the 
committee of management of the reporting 
unit that is held within the period mentioned 
in subsection (1). 

s. 268 Reports etc. to be lodged with FWA 
Lodge full report with the Commission, 
together with the Designated Officer's 
certificate within 14 days (or such longer 
period as the General Manager allows) after 
the presentation under s. 266. 

Proposed Actual Dates 
(as at 18th Jun 2013) 

Thursday 6th Jun 2013 

Reports received from Accountant 

Monday lih Jun 2013 

Resolution passed 

Monday lih Jun 2013 

Auditors Report Signed after Committee of 
Management Meeting. 

Monday 18th Jun 2013 

Monday gth Jul 2013 

Tuesday gth Jul 2013 

(Within the 6 months and 14 days period 
allowed under s. 268) 



11 Exhibition Street 
Melbourne   VIC   3000 

GPO Box 1994 
Melbourne   VIC   3001 

 

Telephone : (03) 8661 7777 
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18 January 2013 

Mr Paul Sinclair 

Assistant Secretary - NSW (ETU) 

Communications, Electrical, Electronic, Energy, Information, Postal, Plumbing and Allied Services 

Union of Australia - Electrical, Energy and Services Division - New South Wales Divisional Branch 

Sent by fax:  (02) 9267 4877 

Dear Mr Sinclair, 

Re:  Lodgement of Financial Report - [FR2012/529] 
 

Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act) 
 
The financial year of the Communications, Electrical, Electronic, Energy, Information, Postal, 
Plumbing and Allied Services Union of Australia - Electrical, Energy and Services Division - New 
South Wales Divisional Branch (the reporting unit) ended on 31 December 2012. 

This is a courtesy letter to remind you of the obligation to prepare and lodge the financial report for 
the reporting unit by the due date, namely 15 July 2013 (that is the period within 6 months and 14 
days of the end of the financial year) under s.268 of the RO Act. 

The RO Act sets out a particular chronological order in which financial documents and statements 
must be prepared, audited, provided to members and presented to a meeting. For your assistance, 
the attached Timeline/Planner summarises these requirements. 

Fact sheets regarding financial reporting under the RO Act are provided on the Fair Work 
Commission website at: Financial Reporting Fact Sheets. 

The documents can be emailed to orgs@fwc.gov.au .  If it is envisaged that the financial report 
cannot be lodged by the due date you are requested to contact this office prior to the due date to 
discuss the issue. 

It should be noted that s.268 is a civil penalty provision.  Failure to lodge a financial report may 
result in legal proceedings being issued with the possibility of a pecuniary penalty (up to $33,000 
for a body corporate and $6,600 for an individual per contravention) being imposed upon an officer 
whose conduct led to the contravention and/or your organisation.   

Should you seek any clarification in relation to the above, please contact me on (03) 8661 7936 or 
via email at robert.pfeiffer@fwc.gov.au . 

Yours sincerely, 

 
 
Robert Pfeiffer 
Senior Adviser 
Regulatory Compliance Branch 

http://www.fwc.gov.au/index.cfm?pagename=regorgsfactsheets#factsheets
mailto:orgs@fwc.gov.au
mailto:robert.pfeiffer@fwc.gov.au


11 Exhibition Street 
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TIMELINE/ PLANNER 

 

Financial reporting period ending: /       /   

    

Prepare financial statements and Operating Report. 
   

 

   

(a) A Committee of Management Meeting must 
consider the financial statements, and if satisfied, 
pass a resolution declaring the various matters 
required to be included in the Committee of 
Management Statement. 

(b) A 
#
designated officer must sign the Statement 

which must then be forwarded to the auditor for 
consideration as part of the General Purpose 
Financial Report (GPFR). 

/       / 

  

As soon as practicable after end of financial 
year 

 

 

 

  

Auditor's Report prepared and signed and given to 
the Reporting Unit - s257 

/       / 

 Within a reasonable time of having received 
the GPFR 

(NB: Auditor’s report must be dated on or 
after date of Committee of Management 
Statement 

 

    

Provide full report free of charge to members – s265 

 The full report includes: 

 the General Purpose Financial Report (which 
includes the Committee of Management 
Statement); 

 the Auditor’s Report; and 

 the Operating Report. 

/      / 

 (a) if the report is to be presented to a General 

Meeting (which must be held within 6 months 

after the end of the financial year), the report 

must be provided to members 21 days before 

the General Meeting, 

                         or 

(b) in any other case including where the  report 

is presented to a Committee of Management 

meeting*, the report must be provided to 

members within 5 months of end of financial 

year. 

 

  

Present full report to:    

Within 6 months of end of financial year 
(a) General Meeting of Members - s266 (1),(2); OR /       /  

(b) where the rules of organisation or branch allow* - 
a Committee of Management meeting - s266 (3) /       / 

 

Within 6 months of end of financial year 
 

  

Lodge full report with the Fair Work Commission, 
together with the #Designated Officer’s certificate++ 
– s268 

/       / 

 

Within 14 days of meeting 

 

 

*  the full report may only be presented to a committee of management meeting if the rules of the reporting unit provide that a 

percentage of members (not exceeding 5%) are able to call a general meeting to consider the full report. 

#  The Committee of Management Statement  and the Designated Officer’s certificate must be signed by the Secretary or another 

officer who is an elected official and who is authorised under the rules (or by resolution of the organisation) to sign the 

statement or certificate – s243. 

++ The Designated Officer’s certificate must state that the documents lodged are copies of the documents provided to members and 

presented to a meeting in accordance with s266 – dates of such events must be included in the certificate. The certificate cannot 

be signed by a non-elected official. 

 
 




